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Capital India Corp Private Limited

BOARD'’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
Capital India Corp Private Limited (‘Company”)

Your Directors are pleased to present the 3 (Third) Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 (“FY 2023-24" or “period under review”).

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company'’s financial performance for the period under review is given hereunder:

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars for the Financial Year | for the Financial Year

2023-24 2022-23
Total Income 913.85 7,589.40
Total Expenditure 356.91 422.19
Profit/(Loss) before tax 557.60 7,167.21
Tax Expense (including Deferred Tax) 365.65 750.15
Profit/(Loss) after tax 191.95 6,417.05

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company is primarily a holding company, holding investments in its subsidiaries and other group
companies and carries out only such activities, including advising and/or management of funds in its group
Companies, as are permitted under the Master Direction — Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) issued by the RBI for CIC, from time to time.

The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Core-Investment-Company, with the Reserve Bank
of India (“RBI") vide the Certificate of Registration (“CoR”) dated November 13, 2023, issued by the RBI.

Further, during the period under review, the Company’s total income stood at INR 913.85 Lakhs and the
Company has earned a Profit after tax of INR 191.95 Lakhs.

3. AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

For the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, an amount of INR 38.39 Lakhs was transferred to Special
Reserve Account in terms of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act.

Except as mentioned above, no amount was transferred to any reserve by the Company during the period
under review.

4. DIVIDEND

With a view to reduce the Company’s borrowings, the Board of Directors has decided not to recommend any
dividend for the period under review.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

During the period under review, there was no change in the capital structure of the Company. As on March
31, 2024, the Capital structure of the Company stands as follows:
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Particulars Details

Authorised Share INR 5,06,06,060 (Indian Rupees Five Crores Six Lakhs Six Thousand Sixty only)

Capital divided into 50,60,606 (Fifty Lakhs Sixty Thousand Six Hundred Six) Equity Shares
having face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each.

INR 5,06,06,060 (Indian Rupees Five Crores Six Lakhs Six Thousand Sixty only)

divided into 50,60,606 (Fifty Lakhs Sixty Thousand Six Hundred Six) Equity Shares

having face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each.

Paid-up Share
Capital

6. DEBENTURES

During the period under review, the Company has not issued/allotted/redeemed any new debentures. As on
March 31, 2024, the following OCDs are outstanding:

Face Value Amount
S. No. | Name of Debenture Holder No. of OCDs (INR) (INR)
1 Trident Buildtech Private Limited 36,511 1,00,000 3,65,11,00,000

7. DETAILS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANY(IES)

As on March 31, 2024, below are the subsidiaries/step-down subsidiaries of the Company:

NS(; Name of the Company Nature of Relation
1. | Capital India Finance Limited (“CIFL”")
2. | Credenc Web Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary
3. | Yellow Whale Technologies Private Limited
4. | Capital India Wealth Management Private Limited -
5. | CIFL Holdings Private Limited Wholly-Owned Subsidiary
6. | Capital India Home Loans Limited
7. | Capital India Asset Management Private Limited Step-Down Subsidiary through CIFL
8. | Rapipay Fintech Private Limited (‘RFPL") *
9. | Kuants Wealth Private Limited .
10. | NYE Insurance Broking Private Limited Step-Down subsidiary though RFPL

*

RFPL is also an Associate of the Company.

The Company does not have any Joint Venture or other Associate (except as mentioned above) pursuant to
the provisions of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

As required under Rule 8 (1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board’s Report has been prepared
on Standalone Financial Statements basis. A report on the performance and financial position of each of the
Company'’s Subsidiary as per Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’), read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, in the prescribed form AOC-1 is attached as ‘Annexure I' to the Board's Report.

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The composition of the Board is governed by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules made thereunder. As on March 31, 2024, below is the composition of Board of Directors of the
Company:

S. No. | Name of Director Designation
1. Mr. Sumit Kumar Narvar Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Keshav Porwal Non-Executive Director
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9.

10.

1.

12.

13.

| 3. [ Mr.Deepak Vaswan | Non-Executive Director |

On the basis of declaration received from the Directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the Directors are disqualified from being appointed as or holding office of Director as stipulated in Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company was not required to appoint any Key Managerial Personnel under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the period under review.

Particulars of employees receiving remuneration more than the limit prescribed

The provisions and disclosures required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule

5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not

applicable to the Company.

MEETINGS

i) BOARD MEETING
During the period under review, 9 (nine) Board Meetings were held and the intervening gap between the
meetings were within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details regarding the
Board Meetings and the attendance of the Directors in the Board Meetings, during the period under review,
are given in the Corporate Governance section of the Board Report.

ii) GENERAL MEETING

During the period under review, the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023, was held on September 29, 2023.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. AVK & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 02638N) was appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) consecutive years, to hold the office from the
conclusion of 01st Annual General Meeting of the Company up to the conclusion of 06" Annual General
Meeting.

The Auditor's Report submitted by the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for the period under review, does
not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the period under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company did not accept any public deposits during the period under review. Therefore, the disclosures
required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments as per Section 186 of the Act, made by the Company,
have been disclosed in the financial statements.
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14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

COST RECORDS

The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company for the period under review.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2024 will be available
on the website of the Company at www.capitalindiacorp.com.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The provisions of the Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company for the period under
review.

INTERNAL AUDIT & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are
not applicable to the Company for the period under review.

Further, your Company has an adequate internal controls system, which is commensurate with the size and
nature of its business. The primary objective of the internal control system is to ensure that the operations are
being run effectively and efficiently to prevent any revenue leakage, that all its assets are safeguarded and
protected.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
occurred between the end of financial year to which these financial statements related and the date of this
report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE RELATED PARTIES

None of the transactions with related party(ies) comes within the ambit of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the particulars of the transactions in Form AOC - 2 of the rules prescribed under the
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

a. The activities of the Company are not energy intensive as the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity.

b. No technology has been developed and / or imported by way of foreign collaboration.
c. During the year, the Company had “NIL” foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In today’s economic environment, Risk Management is a very important part of business. The main aim of risk
management is to identify, monitor and take precautionary measures in respect of the events that may pose
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22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29,

risks for the business. The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate
various risks to key business objectives. Major risks i.e., competition, legal changes, change in Government
policies, availability of finance, manpower as identified by the Company are systematically addressed through
mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, relating to
appointment of Independent Directors are not applicable to the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, relating to
constitution of Audit Committee, are not applicable to the Company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, relating to
constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, are not applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR”) Committee. The Board of Directors laid down the CSR Policy,
covering the objectives, focus areas, governance structure and monitoring & reporting framework among
others.

Details of the composition of CSR Committee and other relevant details have been provided in the Corporate
Governance Report. The CSR Policy is placed on the website of the Company at https://capitalindiacorp.com
and a brief outline of the policy and the Annual Report on CSR activities is attached herewith as ‘Annexure
II' of this report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014,

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding vigil mechanism, are not applicable to
the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A detailed Report on Corporate Governance for the financial year 2023-24, pursuant to the Master Direction -
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 read with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of
India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, and other applicable
laws on compliance with the conditions of good Corporate Governance is annexed to this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As required under the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 read
with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is forming a part of this Annual Report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNAL
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30.

3.

32,

33.

There has been no order passed by any authority which impacts the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

During the period under review, there were no women employees in the Company. Hence, no such information
on the sexual harassment is being reported.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS, IF ANY, REPORTED BY AUDITORS’ UNDER SECTION 143 (12) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There was no fraud reported by the Auditors’ of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the Board of Directors during the period under review.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions of Section
134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in preparation of the Financial Statements for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, and state that:

a. in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f.  the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness(es) in the designs or
operations were observed.

GENERAL DISCLOSURE

Your Directors states that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items, during the
period under review:;

The Company has not bought back any of its securities;

The Company has not issued any bonus shares;

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares;

The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;
The provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company;

There was no revision in the financial statements of the Company;

IR RIS
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g) There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016, and

h) During the financial year 2023-24, there was no instance of one-time settlement with Banks or Financial
Institutions. Therefore, as per rule 8(5)(xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, reasons of difference
in the valuation at the time of one-time settiement and valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or
Financial Institutions are not reported.

34. STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCES OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

35. COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS ISSUED BY THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

The Company continues to fuffill the norms and standards laid down under the Master Directions and the other
applicable regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of India, from time to time.

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates and consultants for their
continued support extended to your Companies during the year under review.

By order and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

Sumit Kumar Narvar Deepak Vaswan
Chairman & Managing Director Non-Executive Director
Date : June 29,2024 DIN: 02045194 DIN: 07814811
Place : New Delhi
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(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Act read with Rule 5 of Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form AOC-1

Annexure |

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures for the year ended March 31, 2024

Part-A: Subsidiaries

(INR in Lakhs)

Name of Subsidiary companies@
Capital India | Capital India CIFL Yellow Whale | CredencWeb | Capital Capital T NYE NYE
S. . Finance Wealth Holdings | Technologies | Technologies India India Asset . Insurance
No. Particulars Limited Management Private Private Private Home | Management F"Tt%h Invc?stech Broking
h _ - - ) Private Private .
Private Limited Limited Limited Loans Private Limited® | Limited* Private
Limited Limited® Limited® Limited*
1 The date since when the subsidiary was | December | December | December | January 17, | August 19, August | September | September | April 14, | June 01,
acquired 11, 2017 23, 2021 23, 2021 2023 2021 11,2017 | 12,2017 21,2019 2022 2022
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
2 | different from the holding company's reporting
eriod .
Eeporting currency and exchange rate as on the Not Applicable
3| last date of the relevant Financial year in the
case of foreign subsidiaries.
4 | Share Capital (Paid - up) 7,773.43 5.00 5.00 2.00 1,211.08 | 15,516.00 7.00 3,970.72 | 486.11 75.00
9 | Reserves & surplus 52,880.75 (4.23) (4.26) (2,88.78) (3,799.40) | (989.63) (4.86) 4,029.33 | 377.16 0.12
6 | Total Assets 1,24,345.76 0.95 0.92 98.13 588.77 47,163.16 2.31 26,013.24 | 907.45 76.67
7 | Total Liabilities 63,691.58 0.18 0.18 3,84.91 3,177.09 | 32,636.79 0.17 18,013.19 | 44.18 1.55
8 | Investments 17,643.51 - - - - 954.15 2,365.60 - -
9 | Turnover 19,466.34 0.15 - 29.16 108.26 6,712.05 - 42,723.75 6.66 4.60
10| Profit before tax 2,744.56 (0.41) (0.44) (43.37) (2,120.00) 150.33 (0.65) (3,739.72) | (58.36) 3.14
11| Provision for tax 7,34.29 - - - - 26.60 - 11.06 - 0.79
12| Profit after tax 2,010.27 (0.41) (0.44) (43.37) (2,120.00) 123.73 (0.65) (3,750.79) | (58.36) 2.35
13| Proposed dividend 77.73 - - - - - - - - -
14| % of shareholding 73.04 99.99 99.99 78.00 77.11 99.89 100.00 52.50 52.50* | 52.50*
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@Capital India Corp Private Limited (“Company’) was converted to Private Limited Company from Limited Liability Partnership (‘LLP’) w.e.f. March 14, 2022, though the LLP held shares directly /

in-directly in the aforementioned Companies, but, there is no concept of holding/subsidiary in LLP Act, 2008, hence the date of acquisition mentioned hereinabove is the date, since when the LLP
held shares in the aforesaid Companies.

$Held through Capital India Finance Limited
*Held through Rapipay Fintech Private Limited

Note:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NYE Insurance Broking Private Limited
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil

Part B: Associates & Joint Ventures: Rapipay Fintech Private Limited is also an Associate of the Company

By order and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

Sumit Kumar Narvar Deepak Vaswan
Chairman & Managing Director Non-Executive Director
Date : June 29,2024 DIN: 02045194 DIN: 06706341
Place : New Delhi
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Annexure Il
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities of the Company
for the financial year 2023-24

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Capital India Corp Private Limited has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy in accordance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 (CSR Rules), as amended from time to time, which outlines the Company’s CSR objectives
and its implementation.

The Company is a socially responsible organization which aims to create an empowered, equitable, and
sustainable ecosystem. We truly believe that a nation only progresses when all the strata of its society, and all
the forces in its environment live together in harmony.

Through our philanthropic arm ATULYA FOUNDATION, we reach out to the last mile communities and act as
a catalyst in providing access to services & opportunities that help these communities live a prosperous life in
a sustainable manner. Our focus areas are- Education, Livelihood, Rural development, Health & Hygiene,
Sustainable Environment and Disaster Response.

. Composition of CSR Committee:

S. Name of Director Designation |Number of meetings off Number of meetings of

No. | Nature of | CSR Committee held | CSR Committee attended
Directorship during the year during the year

1. | Mr. Sumit Kumar Narvar Chairman 1 1

2. | Mr. Keshav Porwal Member 1 1

3. | Mr. Deepak Vaswan Member 1 1

. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

a. CSR Policy: https://capitalindiacorp.com

b. CSR Projects approved: https://capitalindiacorp.com

c. Current Composition of CSR Committee: https://www.capitalindiacorp.com

. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:
Not Applicable

a)  Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: INR 3,308.98 Lakhs
b)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: INR 66.18 Lakhs
c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

d)  Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: INR 66.18 Lakhs

a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): INR 66.20 Lakhs
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b) Amount spentin Administrative Overheads: NIL
c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: INR 66.20 Lakhs

e) CSRamount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in INR)
Total Amount Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VIl as per second
Financial Year | sub-section (6) of section135 | proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135
(inINR) Amount Date of Name of the | Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
66.20 Lakhs NA NA NA NA NA

f)  Excess amount for set-off, if any:

S. No. Particular Amount
(in INR Lakhs)
(1) (2) @)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-
. - 66.18
section (5) of section 135
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 66.20
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 0.02
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or .
o . . . ; Nil
activities of the previous Financial Years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)- 0.02
(iv)] '

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

Sl. | Preceding Amount Balance | Amount | Amount transferred | Amount | Deficien
No.| Financial | transferredto | Amountin | Spentin to a Fund as remainin | cy, if any
Year(s) | Unspent CSR Unspent the specified under | gto be
Account under CSR Financial | Schedule VIl as per | spent in
sub-section (6) | Account Year | second proviso to |succeedi
of section 135 | under sub- | (in INR) | sub-section (5) of ng
(inINR) section (6) section 135, if any | Financial
of section Amount | Date of | Years
135 (inINR) | Transfer | (in INR)
(inINR)
FY-1 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
FY-2 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
FY-3 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

O Yes M No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired
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Details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in
the Financial Year:

S. | Short particulars of the |Pincode of| Date of | Amount of CSR | Details of entity/ Authority/
No. property or asset(s) the creation | amount spent | beneficiary of the registered
[including complete  |property or owner
address and location of | asset(s)
the property]
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable
N.A.

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-
section (5) of Section 135: N.A.

By order and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

Sumit Kumar Narvar

Chairman & Managing Director and Chairman of CSR Committee

Date : June 29,2024 DIN: 02045194
Place : New Delhi
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A.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
for the financial year 2023-24

Corporate Governance Philosophy

Capital India Corp Private Limited (“Company”) believes in and adhere to good and effective corporate
governance practices which constitutes the strong foundation, on which successful commercial enterprises
are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance superintends business strategies and
ensures accountability, ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators,
employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society at large.

The Company believes that governance practices enable the Management to direct and control the affairs of
the Company in an efficient manner and to achieve the Company’s goal of maximizing value for all its
stakeholders. The Company will continue to focus its resources, strengths and strategies to achieve its vision
of becoming a leading Company in its sector in India.

The Guidelines shall ensure that the Company acts in accordance with the highest standards of Corporate
Governance in all its activities and that the affairs of the Company are conducted with integrity, fairness,
accountability and transparency.

The Company is in compliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance as specified under the Master
Direction — Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 of the Master Direction — Reserve
Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (hereinafter
referred to as the “Regulations”) and other applicable laws.

Board of Directors

The Company is managed and controlled through a professional and qualified Board of Directors (‘Board”).
The Board plays a pivotal role in overseeing and protecting the long-term interest of the stakeholders of the
Company. The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent views to the
Company’s management while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities and ensures high standards of ethics,
transparency and disclosures.

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
(hereinafter referred to as the “Act”). As on March 31, 2024, the Board of the Company has 3 (Three)
Directors, comprising of 1 (One) Executive Director and 2 (Two) Non-Executive Directors.

During the period under review, 9 (nine) meetings of the Board were held on April 22, 2023, August 01, 2023,
August 24, 2023, October 18, 2023, October 26, 2023, November 30, 2023, January 02, 2024, March 20,
2024, and March 30, 2024.

The Composition of the Board, attendance at the meetings of the Board along-with remuneration of the
Directors as on March 31, 2024, stands as follows:

. | Director and date of (i.e. meetings other INR (Lakhs) shares

Name/ DIN of | Capacity No. of Board No. of Remuneration No. of

appointment Executive/ during the Directorships held in
Non- financial year and
Executive/ 2023-24 convertible
Chairman/ | held | attended Salary and | Sitting | Comm- | instruments
Promoter other Fee | ission held in
nominee/ compensation the NBFC
Independent)

Mr.  Sumit Kumar | Chairmanand | 9 9 Nil Nil Nil Nil 24,04,800
Narvar Managing
DIN: 02045194 Director
March 14, 2022
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2. | Mr. Keshav Porwal Non- 9 9 9 Nil Nil Nil 1,00,200
DIN: 06706341 Executive
March 14, 2022 Director

3. | Mr. Deepak Vaswan Non- 9 9 7 Nil Nil Nil 50,606
DIN: 07814811 Executive
March 14, 2022 Director

- There were no change in the composition of the Board during the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

- None of the Director of the Company is related to each other as per the provisions of the Act, however, Mr.
Deepak Vaswan is brother-in-law of Mr. Sumit Kumar Narvar.

C. Committees of the Board and their composition

The Board Committees play a vital role in strengthening Corporate Governance practices and focus
effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution on the diverse matters. The composition and terms
of reference of the Committees are in compliance with the provisions of the Act, the Reserve Bank of India’s
Master Directions and other applicable rules/ circulars/ guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India. The
Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees. Minutes of the proceedings of
Committee meetings are circulated to the respective Committee members and placed before the Board for
its noting.

a) Group Risk Management Committee

The Company has constituted a Group Risk Management Committee (“GRMC”) comprising of Directors
of the Company. The GRMC has a Policy in place that is intended to ensure that an effective Risk
Management framework for the group is established and implemented within the group. The GRMC
looks into various risks which may impact the Company’s ability to achieve its strategy, objectives and
results.

During the period under review, 1 (one) meeting of the GRMC was held on February 01, 2024. The
composition of the GRMC and the attendance of the members of the Committee at the meetings held
during the period under review, is as follows:

S. |Name of Director /| Member of Capacity | No. of meetings | No. of shares

No. | Member Committee of Committee held in the
since held | attended NBFC

1 | Mr. Keshav Porwal November 30, Chairman 1 1 1,00,200
2023

2 | Mr. Sumit Kumar| November 30, Member 1 1 24,04,800

Narvar 2023

3 | Mr. Deepak Vaswan November 30, Member 1 1 50,606

2023

The requisite quorum was present in the meeting held during the year.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the RMC of the Board includes the following:

a. create a suitable framework to enable all the future activities to take place in a consistent &
controlled manner, and protecting/enhancing assets;

b. formulate/amend policy(ies)/rules for identification of various risks, procedure to be followed for
saving the Company from such risk and for mitigation of identified risks;

c. approve all credit risk & operations related policies and credit strategy;

d. review the portfolio composition, quality, delinquencies and Non-Performing Assets (NPAs);
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b)

review the credit risk profile and any major development, internal and external, and their impact
on portfolio and as a whole on the Company and its subsidiary(ies);

review the non-compliance, limit breaches, audit / regulatory findings, and policy exceptions;
review the recommendations made by the credit committee of the Board in respect of the
amendments to be made in the Credit Policy Framework of the Company and recommend
further the same to the Board, if deemed necessary

to accept the terms and conditions, including any subsequent modifications, if any, from time to
time, in relation to the matters stated herein;

any other matter in relation to above which the committee deems fit and which is not reserved
to be approved by the Board under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other applicable law.

Asset-Liability Committee

The Company has constituted an Asset-Liability Committee (“ALCO”) comprising of Directors of the
Company. During the period under review, 1 (one) meeting of the ALCO was held on February 01,
2024. The composition of the ALCO and the attendance of the members of the Committee at the
meetings held during the period under review, is as follows:

S. |Name of Director /| Member of Capacity | No. of meetings | No. of shares

No. | Member Committee of Committee held in the
since held | attended NBFC

1 | Mr. Sumit Kumar| November 30, Chairman 1 1 24,04,800

Narvar 2023

2 | Mr. Keshav Porwal November 30, Member 1 1 1,00,200
2023

3 | Mr. Deepak Vaswan November 30, Member 1 1 50,606
2023

The requisite quorum was present in the meeting held during the year.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the ALCO of the Board includes the following:

a.

b.

review and monitor interest rates offered by the Company to its customers in accordance with
the prevailing market norms and Regulations/directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India;
formulate/amend policy(ies)/rules broadly outlining the Interest Rate Model and the Company’s
approach of risk gradation in this regard for its lending business;

to review monitor and amend the policy(ies) / framework set up for the management of Assets
and Liabilities of the Company on periodical basis;

to review balance sheet growth, mismatches and forecasts;

to evaluate and arrive at desirable maturity profiles for assets and liabilities based on anticipated
funding needs, loan demands and liquidity position

to accept the terms and conditions, including any subsequent modifications, if any, from time to
time, in relation to the matters stated herein;

any other matter in relation to above which the committee deems fit and which is not reserved
to be approved by the Board under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other applicable law.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR”) comprising of
Directors of the Company. During the period under review, 1 (one) meeting of the CSR committee was
held on September 04, 2023. The composition of the CSR Committee and the attendance of the
members of the Committee at the meetings held during the period under review, is as follows:
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S. |Name of Director /| Member of Capacity | No. of meetings | No. of shares
No. | Member Committee of Committee held in the
since held | attended NBFC
1 |Mr.  Sumit Kumar| August 24,2023 | Chairman 1 1 24,04,800
Narvar
2 | Mr. Keshav Porwal August 24, 2023 Member 1 1 1,00,200
3 | Mr. Deepak Vaswan August 24, 2023 Member 1 1 50,606

The requisite quorum was present in the meeting held during the year.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee of the Board includes the following:

a. formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in the areas or subject, specified in
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 2013;

b. recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a);

monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time; and

d. any other matter(s) in relation to above which the Committee deems fit and which is not reserved
to be approved by the Board under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other applicable law, for
the time being in force.

o

Board Functioning and Procedure

Adequate notice is given to all Directors/Members of the Board/Committees for the Board/Committee
Meetings regarding the schedule of meetings. A detailed agenda is sent in advance to all the
Directors/Members of Board/Committees to enable the Board/Committees to take informed decisions at the
meetings.

The Company has a well-established framework for the meetings of the Board and its Committees which
seeks to systematize the decision-making process at the Board and Committee meetings in an informed and
efficient manner. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation during the meeting. The Members of the
Board/Committees express their opinion and decisions taken based on the consensus arrived at, after
detailed discussion/deliberation at the Board/Committee Meeting and the same is accordingly recorded in the
minutes of the meetings.

General Body Meetings

The details of meetings of the shareholders of the Company held during the financial year 2023-24 is as
under:

S. | Type of Meeting Date and Place Resolutions passed
No. | (Annual/ Extra-

Ordinary)
1 Annual General | September 29,2023 | 1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Meeting New Delhi Statements of the Company, for the financial year

ended on March 31, 2023; and

2. To re-appoint M/s AVK & Associates, Chartered
Accountant (Firm Registration No.: 02638N) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company.
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Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

There were no non-compliances observed, with requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder (including accounting and secretarial standards) during the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

G. Details of penalties and strictures

No penalty has been imposed on the Company by any of the regulators during the financial year ended March
31, 2024.

H. Breach of covenant

No instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued, have been observed by the
Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

The Company hereby states that the disclosure requirement with respect to Divergence in Asset Classification
and Provisioning is not applicable, as there neither have been any additional provisioning requirements
assessed by the Reserve Bank of India, if any, exceeding five percent of the reported profits before tax and
impairment loss on financial instruments for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and nor the additional
Gross NPAs identified by the Reserve Bank of India, if any, exceeds five percent of the reported Gross NPAs
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

By order and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

Sumit Kumar Narvar Deepak Vaswan
Chairman & Managing Director Non-Executive Director
Date : June 29,2024 DIN: 02045194 DIN: 07814811
Place : New Delhi
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A. ABOUT CAPITAL INDIA CORP PRIVATE LIMITED

Capital India Corp Private Limited (“CICPL” or “Company”), registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’)
as a Non-Banking Financial Core-Investment-Company, not accepting deposits (“CIC”), which primarily holds
investments in its subsidiaries which are mainly engaged in lending and offering a wide array of
services/products in the financial services sector.

The Company has the following 10 (ten) direct and indirect (step-down) subsidiaries:

S.No. Name of the Company Nature of Relation
i. Capital India Finance Limited (“CIFL")
ii. Credenc Web Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary

iii. Yellow Whale Technologies Private Limited

iv. Capital India Wealth Management Private Limited

v. CIFL Holdings Private Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiary

vi. Capital India Home Loans Limited (“CIHL")

vii. Capital India Asset Management Private Limited Step-Down Subsidiary through CIFL

viii. Rapipay Fintech Private Limited (“RFPL”") *
ix. Kuants Wealth Private Limited

X. NYE Insurance Broking Private Limited Step-Down subsidiary though RFPL

Amongst above the major subsidiaries of the Company and the brief overview of their businesses are

as follows:

Capital India Finance Limited (“CIFL"): is a subsidiary of CICPL and is a public listed Company listed on
the Bombay Stock Exchange (“BSE”). CIFL was incorporated on November 16, 1994 under the provisions
of Companies Act, 1956. The Company has received a Certificate of Registration (“COR”) number B-
14.03278 dated August 30, 2017, from the RBI to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution
(“NBFC”) without accepting public deposits. The Company has been classified as a Systemically Important
Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company as defined under Section 45-IA of the RBI Act,
1934 w.e.f. January 28, 2019. CIFL is entitled to continue to hold the COR based on its asset / income
pattern as on and for the year ended March 31, 2023, which have been computed in terms of RBI Press
Release 1998-99/1269 dated April 8, 1999. CIFL is also engaged in the business of foreign exchange
services as an Authorised Category |l Dealer vide RBI license No. 15/2020 dated September 01, 2020
under the RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Direction DNBR. PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 and is also granted
an authorization by RBI to undertake inward cross border money transfer activities in India under Money
Transfer Service Scheme (“MTSS”).

CIFL, specializes in tailored loan products for MSMEs. We believe India’s burgeoning economy demands
customized financing solutions for millions of micro, small and medium businesses, traders, and self-
employed individuals who may lack access to traditional financial avenues.

. Capital India Home Loans Limited (‘CIHL"): CIHL, is the step-down subsidiary of the Company,

established in March 2019, as a subsidiary of CIFL, is a modern housing finance company, dedicated to
providing seamless home loan solutions in India’s affordable housing sector. CIHL caters to the emerging
urban population in metro and tier 2 and tier 3 cities with semi-formal incomes, a segment often
underserved by larger housing finance companies and banks. Leveraging cutting-edge technology, we
simplify and expedite the loan process, ensuring transparency and efficiency for our customers. CIHL
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B.

customers includes both salaried and self-employed individuals, primarily first-time homebuyers with
limited or no credit history and semi-formal income. Their primary requirement is obtaining home loans
ranging from INRO.5 to 2.0 million, alongside the desire for access to formal housing finance while
minimizing disruptions to their daily work routine. CIHL have also developed an evolving operating model
capable of effectively evaluating the income and repayment capability of non-salaried individuals.

Rapipay Fintech Private Limited (‘Rapipay’): Rapipay is the step-down subsidiary of the Company,
through CIFL. RapiPay is a customer-centric fintech company dedicated to providing a wide range of
financial services to the underbanked population across India, through its extensive network of Direct
Business Outlets (DBO’s) and an unassisted platform with the brand name “NYE”. With this approach,
RapiPay has emerged as one of the fastest-growing fintech players in the country, delivering Neo Banking
services to the masses.

RapiPay boasts a pan-India retail agent network of DBOs, ensuring high penetration for tech products. Its
transient customer base seeks a rich user experience and value-added offerings, typically being less price-
sensitive but desiring superior customer service who avail them on NYE App and Web applications.
Customers can avail most of these services instantly at the convenience of their home or on the go through
NYE. Rapipay adds significant value to customers by providing them easy and instant access through self
(NYE) and assisted (DBOs) channels. By leveraging its technological capabilities, RapiPay adds significant
value by offering integrated services.

Traditionally, the underbanked prefer assisted modes of service, and banks often find it infrastructurally
uneconomical to serve these customers due to high acquisition costs. With its expanding distribution
network, RapiPay is strategically positioned to provide comprehensive Banking, Financial Services, and
Insurance (BFSI) services through a single DBO outlet, effectively meeting the needs of this underserved
segment.

Rapipay also provides payment solutions to Merchants through its POS and QR code offerings and offers
business loans to its DBOs and Merchants through an assisted channel of sales network spread across

India.

INDIAN ECONOMY

While the global economy grappled with macroeconomic challenges, India sustained its positive growth trajectory
Globally in FY23-24. India’s economy showcased a remarkable surge, with the GDP growth rate reaching an
impressive 7.6% in FY 2023-24. Driving this strong economic momentum was a substantial uptick in private
investment spending, which grew by 10.6% year-over-year (YoY).

C.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

i.  Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs): NBFC sector remains a key pillar of India’s financial
ecosystem in FY 2023-24, contributing significantly to financial inclusion, credit expansion, and
economic growth. With over 25% of the total credit market share, NBFCs continue to complement
the banking sector by targeting niche markets and offering specialized financial products.

» Market Dynamics and Growth Drivers:
a. NBFCs have carved out unique segments, particularly focusing on MSMEs, rural
populations, and women entrepreneurs, providing accessible credit options that traditional
banks often overlook garnering niche market penetration;
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b. By delivering microloans and financial literacy programs, NBFCs actively reach underserved
customers, aligning with India’s financial inclusion objectives.

» Regulatory Landscape:
a. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has introduced stricter regulations to improve
transparency, governance, and consumer protection. NBFCs are expected to align with
these standards to ensure sustainable growth and avoid regulatory pitfalls.

> Outlook for 2024 and Beyond:

NBFCs are poised to play a significant role in India’s financial future, driven by technology
adoption, collaboration with banks, regulatory upgradation and a customer-centric approach.
The future of the NBFC sector looks promising, with continued growth driven by technological
transformation, regulatory alignment, and market expansion. As India's economy is
booming and demand for credit rises, NBFCs are expected to remain crucial players in ensuring
credit access for underserved sectors such as MSMEs, rural households, and emerging
entrepreneurs.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME): The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSME) sector has significantly contributed to the India’s economic growth, Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) and manufacturing output and bolstered employment generation. According to the latest data,
the MSME sector accounts for around 29% of the overall GDP and 36% of the manufacturing output.
Recognizing the importance of MSMEs, the Indian government has implemented various schemes
and programs to support the development of the sector. These initiatives aim to provide credit
support, encourage new enterprise development, promote formalization, offer technological
assistance, develop infrastructure, impart skill development and training and facilitate market access
for MSMEs.

Housing Finance: The Indian Housing Finance sector has recorded healthy growth in the recent
years. The growth can be attributed to several factors, including rising incomes, enhanced
affordability and substantial government support through initiatives such as the Pradhan Mantri Awas
Yojana (PMAY). The sector has been playing a crucial role in meeting the housing needs of millions
of individuals and has contributed significantly to the overall growth and development of the nation.
The mortgage penetration rate in India remained modest overall but with a low penetration rate in
rural and semiurban areas. This highlights the vast untapped potential, especially in these areas.
According to estimates, the affordable housing segment stands as one of the fastest-growing
domains, fueled by robust government incentives and subsidies. The interim Budget 2024-25 further
bolstered this segment by announcing a scheme that will enable deserving sections of the middle-
economic class ‘living in rented houses, or slums, or chawls and unauthorized colonies’ to buy or
build their own homes. Furthermore, with the advent of digitization in the real estate sector, the
changing demographics of homebuyers and the increased use of advanced technology solutions,
the industry is poised for growth in the forthcoming years.

Fintech: India is amongst the fastest growing Fintech markets in the world. Indian FinTech industry’s
market size is $584 Bn in 2022 and is estimated at ~§1.5 Tn by 2025. The Indian Fintech industry’s
Total Addressable Market is estimated to be $1.3 Tn by 2025 and Assets Under Management &
Revenue to be $1 Tn and $200 Bn by 2030, respectively Major segments under Fintech include
Payments, Digital Lending, Insur-Tech, Wealth-Tech.
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D. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

During the year under review, the key financial indicators of the Company were as follows:
(In INR Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended March 31,2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Total Income 914.51 7,589.40
Total Expenditure 356.91 422.19
PAT 191.95 6,417.05
Net Worth 3,338.56 2,253.25

E. CAUTIONARY NOTE

This report includes forward-looking statements from public sources such as government and industry reports.
These statements involve risks due to economic fluctuations, policy changes, and reliance on specific sectors,
potentially leading to results that vary significantly from projections. Reviewing these statements in conjunction
with the detailed financial statements and notes is crucial. The company may update these statements without
prior notification.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Capital India Corp Private Limited,

Statements”),

Opinion

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “IND AS financial statements”).

flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

auditor’s report’thereon.

notexpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon. , P

@
fissociates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (“IND AS Financial

We have audited the accompanying IND AS Financial Statements of Capital India Corp Private
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of changes in
equity andthe Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (including IND AS) and other

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid IND AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the IND AS, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March,
2024 and its Profit (including other comprehensive income) and changes in equity and its cash

We conducted our audit of financial statements in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the IND AS financial statements under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report and Annexures to
Board’s Report but does not include the IND AS financial statements and our ‘Independent

Our opinion on the IND AS financial statements does not cover other information and we do

Office : KD-117, Pitampura, (Near Kohat Enclave Metro Station) Delhi-110088, Phone : 011-47023101, 41092766

Mobile : +91-9810078752, 9810078754, e-mail : avkcas@gmail.com
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In connection with our audit of the IND AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
otherinformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the IND AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.We have nothing to report in this context.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these IND AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performancein
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the IND AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether theIND AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs willalways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the IND AS financial statements is
included in “Annexure A” of this auditor’s report.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by tlie
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
have given in the “Annexure B> a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Further, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive -
Income, the Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flow dealtwith by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
made thereunder.

) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the company as on
31% March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31% March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating offectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure C’.Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
offectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not paid or
provided remuneration to its directors, during the year; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iil. There were no amounts required to be transferred, to the InvestgLEmdgcation and
" Protection Fund by the Company. xS 5
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iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether ecorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N

G

(CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 29-06-2024

Partner
M.No:088309

UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845




"AVK & Associ

ates |

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

%/

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditors’ Report of Capital India Corp Private Limited for
the period ended 31st March 2024

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies including INDAS used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the IND AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Office : KD-117, Pitampura, (Near Kohat Enclave Metro Station) Dethi-110088, Phone : 011-47023101, 41092766
' Mobile : +91-9810078752, 9810078754, e-mail : avkcas@gmail.com
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with Management of company regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Management of company with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N

: (CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)
Place: New Delhi o Partner

Dated: 29-06-2024 M.No:088309

UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure ‘B’ referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Capital India Corp Private Limited on the IND AS financial statements for the vear ended
31st March 2024:-

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the

Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that:

i. (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The company has maintained proper record showing full particulars of
Intangible Assets.

(b) The company does not own any immovable property hence reporting under
clause 3(i)(c ) and (e) is not applicable in its case.

ii.  (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under
clause3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
35 crores, in aggregate at any points of time during the period, from banks
or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

i, (a) According to the information and explanationsgiven to us and on the basis of
our examinationof the records,the company has made investments and granted
advancein the nature of Unsecured loans to Subsidiary company:

With regards to Investments made:- (in Lakhs)
Particulars | Name of | Aggregate Aggregate Remarks
Lender amountof amountof
investment Investment as on
during the year | balance sheet date
Subsidiary Credenc Web 1,684.72 3,697.72 Investment
Company Technologies made in
Private Limited 35,84,508
shares of Rs.
47 (Face
value of Rs.
10 including
premium of
Rs. 37) each

Office : KD-117, Pitampura, (Near Kohat Enclave Metro Station) Dethi-110088, Phong : 011-47023101, 41092766
Mobile : +91-9810078752, 9810078754, e-mail : avkcas@gmail.com
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With regards to Loans and advances granted:- (in Lakhs)

ﬁaﬁiculars Name of Lender | Aggregate Aggregate amount
amount  given | outstanding as on
during the year | balance sheet date

Remarks

Subsidiary | Credenc Web 720.00 - Interest
Company Technologies bearing
' Private Limited @12%

(b) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per information

and

explanation obtained the companyhas granted loan to its subsidiary company
therefore relevant clauses as to repayment, rate of interest and other
compliances under section 185 or 186 with respect to loan have been complied

with by the company.

(c ) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per information and
explanation obtained,the company has made investments which being carried
over in its books after its conversion from LLP to Company, and based on the
information and explanations obtained such transactions executed at the time of
erstwhile LLP, hence itcannot be commented upon by us as an Auditor of the
company.According to our audit procedures and information and explanation
obtained we state that the terms and conditions of Investment made, had they
been made at the time after conversion cannot be said to be prejudicial to the
Interest of the Company.Details of Investments being carried over is as follows:

Serial | Particulars Amount involved (in
No Lakhs)
1. Investments in subsidiaries 41,964.05/- Amount
associates and other parties outstanding at the balance
sheet date
iv. In our opinion, in respect of loans, investment, guarantees, and security the

company has complied with the provisions of section 185 of Companies Act,
2013. The provisions of section 186 of the Act have also been complied with

by the company.

\z Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanation
obtained we state the company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73
to 76 or any relevant provisions of the companies act and rules made

thereunder.

vi. According to information and explanations obtained we report that the
maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence,

reporting under clause(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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vii. In respect of statutory dues:
In our opinion, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, as applicable, including Incometax, and other material statutory
dues with the authorities.

a) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Statutory
dues including Income Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2024 except the following for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable :

Assessment Nature of Dues Amount ( in Rs.)
Year
2023-24 Income Tax dues 7,020

b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause(a) above which
have not been deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes.

viii.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. a)The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to the lender and so also in
payment of interest thereon.

b)The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us the company has
applied the term loan for the purpose for which they were obtained.

d)  On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for
Jlong-term purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiary.

X. a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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b) Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanation -

XI.

Xil.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

obtained we state that duringthe period the company hasnot madeany
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(x)(b)of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanation
obtained,In our opinion:-

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year
and upto the date of this report.

¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the company during the year.

In our opinion the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company as required under the provisions of Section 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 has disclosed all the applicable
transactions with the related parties separately in its financial statements.

In our opinion and information and explanation obtained, the company does not

fall under the ambit of internal audit system as it is not required to have an
internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

a) Based on our audit procedures and information and explanation obtained, the
Company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act,1934.

b)Based on our audit procedures and information and explanation obtained the
company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without the valid certificate of registration from the Reserve Bank of
India, hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) is not applicable.




c)

d)

xvii.

xviil.
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XX.
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In our opinion the company is a core investment company (CIC) as defined in
regulation made by Reserve Bank of India and according to information and
explanation given it has been registered as a CIC - “ Non-Deposit Taking with
Reserve Bank of India. In June 2022, Company had applied to Reserve Bank of
India for Core Investment Company (CIC).Reserve Bank of India, effective
13th November, 2023 has granted it approval, consequently the Company has
been classified as a “Non-Deposit Taking Core Investment Company”.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us
there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

The Company hasnot incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by

~our audit.Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not

applicable for the year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the period.

The financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, it has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report due to an
indication that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. The fact has been stated by us in our main audit report with
reference to note no 38 to the financial statements. We, however, state that this
s not an assurance nor a doubt as to the future viability of the Company. The
generation of profits in the year under audit and the management plans and
discussion may make position different in the coming year. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company does not have any unspent amount of Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) in respect of any ongoing or other projects as at the
expiry of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a)
and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

T AR SR
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xxi.  Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanation
obtained, in our opinion the company is required to prepare consolidated
financial statements as per Master Direction - Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 read with Master Direction — Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023,as the Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as
Non-Banking Financial Core-Investment-Company (“NBFC-CIC”).

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N

ki

(CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)
Partner

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 29-06-2024 i M.No:088309
UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Capital India Corp
Private Limited(“the Company”) as of 31 March,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal finaricial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness I
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud P

or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

. :
r < :
|
i :
v

Office : KD-117, Pitampura, (Near Kohat Enclave Metro Station) Delhi-110088, Phone : 011-47023101 41092766
Mobile : +91-9810078752, 9810078754, e-mail : avkcas@gmail.com
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, has an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March,2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N

Ly

: (CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)
Place: New Delhi Partner

Dated: 29-06-2024 M.No:088309

UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes As At As At
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 3a 3.06 3.19
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above 3b 32.89 317.72
(c) Loans 4 - 200.00
(d) Investments 5 41,964.05 40,289.38
(e) Other Financial assets 6 0.79 0.41
42,000.79 40,810.70
(2) Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (net) 7 32.85 -
(b) Property, Plant and Equipment 8 0.47 -
(c) Other Intangible Assets 9 311 3.39
(d) Deferred tax Assets (net) 13 0.87 -
37.29 3.39
TOTAL ASSETS 42,038.08 40,814.09
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowing (other than debt securities) 10 2,869.45 1,349.45
(b) Subordinated Liabilities 11 34,872.61 36,511.00
(c) Other financial liabilities 12 418.86 164.62
38,160.93 38,025.07
(2) Non- Financial Liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 13 - 0.15
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 14 32.55 29.56
32.55 29.71
(3) EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 506.06 506.06
(b) Other Equity 16 3,338.56 2,253.25
3,844.62 2,759.31
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 42,038.08 40,814.09

Significant Accounting Policies and notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
Standalone Balance Sheet of Company as per Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 attached as

(Annexure 1).

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 02638N
UDIN: 24088309BKCNKHB8845

For and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

\w@‘

¢orp ‘Q

s% :
CA Ashwani Kr. Relan Sumit Ku Narv Deepak Vaswan
Partner Chairman Managmg 5 “‘/ g;i;/ Director
M. No. 088309 DIN: 02045194 \\w;m// DIN: 07814811

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.06.2024




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990D1.2022PTC395053
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
1 Revenue from operations
i [nterest Income 17 22.09 27.74
it Dividend Income 18 56.78 56.78
il Net gain on fair value changes 19 734.98 -
iv Other operating income 20 100.00 7,504.88
913.85 7,589.40
1. Other Income 21 0.66 -
III. Total Income (I+1I) 914.51 7,589.40
IV. Expenses
i Finance Costs 22 283.37 386.32
ii  Employee Benefits Expenses 23 0.67 -
iii Depreciation, amortization and impairment 8 0.16 017
iv  Others expenses 24 7271 35.70
Total Expenses 35691 422.19
V. Profit/(Loss) before tax (IlI-1V) 557.60 7,167.21
VI. Tax expense: 25
Current Tax - 750.00
Deferred Tax (1.02) 0.15
Tax paid for Earlier Year 366.67 -
VIL. Profit/(Loss) after tax (V-VI) 191.95 6,417.05
VIIL. Other Comprehensive Income 26
a) (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
(if) Income tax relating to items that be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
b) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income - -
IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (VII+VIII) 191.95 6,417.05
X. Earnings per equity share of 10 each 27
Basic {in Rs.) 3.79 126.80
Diluted (in Rs.) 3,79 126.80
Significant Accounting Policies and notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

Standalone Balance Sheet of Company as per Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 attached as (Annexure 1).

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants /
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 02638N
UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845

For and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

P o ) o v’ ) >
Iy - o : S
TRV Sumit Kumar Narvar Vs Cfﬂipﬁz;;ﬂ\n\eepakVaswan
Partner Chairman an naging Direct g:;\% -~ "1’}\‘ Director
102045194 &

M. No. 088309 DI "% 107814811
Place: New Delhi
g iy
%, 3
.

Date: 29.06.2024
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Capital India Corp Private Limited

CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 557.60 7,167.21
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 0.16 0.17
Finance Cost 283.37 386.32
Dividend Income (56.78) (56.78)
Interest Income (22.09) (27.74)
Fair Value gain of investments recognised at FVTPL (734.98) -
Fair value Interest Income on Investments in Debentures - -
(530.33) 30198
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 27.27 7,469.19
(Increase)/Decrease in financial and non financial assets (0.38) (0.29)
Increase/(Decrease) in financial and non-financial liabilities 25723 (596.25)
256.85 (596.54)
Cash generated from/(used in) Operations before Tax 284.12 6,872.63
Current Taxes paid (32.85) (750.00)
Tax paid for earlier year (366.67) -
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (115.40) 6,122.63
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase/Subscription of Investments (747.00) -
Loan (inclunding interest) convertible into Equity shares (937.72) -
Sale/Redemption of Investments - 2,171.90
Purchase of Property, Plant ad Equipments (0.47) -
Sale of Property, Plant ad Equipments 0.12 -
Interest Received 22.09 27.74
Investment in term deposits 284.83 (317.72)
Loans given (720.00) (200.00)
Reapayment of loan given 920.00 -
Dividend Received 56,78 56.78
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (1,121.36) 1,738.70
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds/(repayment) of Borrowings 1,520.00 (3,054.05)
Redemption of Debentures - (4,501.50)
Interest paid (283.37) (386.32)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities 1,236.63 (7,941.87
Net Cash Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (0.13 (80.53)
Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.19 83.72
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.06 3.19
Cash and Cash Equivalents included in the Statement of Cash Flow
comprise of the following:
i) Cash on Hand 0.23 0.23
ii) Balance with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 2.83 2,96
Total 3.06 3.19
Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities:
Particulars Asat 321:;;\1 arch, inﬂow(;?ts)?xtﬂow) Non cash changes | As at 31st March, 2024
Borrowing (other than debt securities) 1,349.45 1,520.00 - 2,869.45
Subordinated Liabilities 36,511.00 - (1,638.39) 34,872.61
37,860.45 1,520.00 (1,638.39) 37,742.06

Notes:

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 02638N
UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845

o

CA Akshwani Kr. Relan
Partner

M. No. 088309

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.06.2024

a, The previous year figures have been regoruped/reclassified wherever necessary
b. Significant Accounting Policies and notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
¢. Standalone Balance Sheet of Company as per Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 attached as (Annexure 1).

For and on behalf of the Board

\

~~=_Capital India Corp Private Limited

epak Vaswan
Director




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

a. Equity Share Capital

Particulars No. of Equity Amount
Shares
Balance as at April 01, 2022 5,060,606 506.06
Changes in Equity Share Capital from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 5,060,606 506.06
Changes in Equity Share Capital from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,060,606 506.06
b. Other Equity
Items of Other
: Comprehensive

Particulars Special Reserve Retal.ned Il; come Total

u/s 451C Earnings (Equity Instruments

atFVTOCI)

Balance at April 1, 2022 - (4,163.80) - (4,163.80)
- Profit/(Loss) during the year - 6,417.05 - 6,417.05
- Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the Year (net of tax) - - - -
- Transfer for the year - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 - 2,253.25 - 2,253.25
- Profit/(Loss) during the year - 191.95 - 191.95
- Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the Year (net of tax) - - - -
- Adjustment on account of present value of Compulsarily Convertible Debenture - 893,35 - 893.35
- Transfer during the year 38.39 (38.39) - -
- Transfer on sale of equity instruments - - - -
Balance at March 31, 2024 38.39 3,300.17 - 3,338.56

Significant Accounting Policies and notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
Standalone Balance Sheet of Company as per Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 attached as (Annexure 1).

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 02638N
UDIN: 240883093!((;1!»]4‘()},{88{&

2

For and on behalf of the Board
ndia Corp Private Limited
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CA Ashwani Kr. Relan Sumit Kumar Nar¥3 -/ Peepak Vaswan
Partner Chairman and Mafiagi N Director
M. No. 088309 DIN: 07814811
Place: New Delhi R e g

Date: 29.06.2024
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Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

Corporate Information

Capital India Corp Private Limited having its registered office at 2nd Floor, DLF Centre, Sansad Marg, New Delhi-110001, was incorporated
on 14th March 2022 as a private limited Company under the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act’) upon conversion of LLP namely Capital India
Corp LLP.

The main objective of the company is to carry on business of an Investment Company and to buy, underwrite, sub-underwrite, to invest in
with or without interest or security and to engage of financing and to provide venture capital, seed capital, loan capital or to give
guarantees on behalf of the company as permitted under the applicable laws.

In June 2022, the Company had applied to Reserve Bank of India for Core Investment Company (CIC) The Reserve Bank of India, vide its
certificate of registration dated 13th November, 2023 has granted its approval to the Company and the Company has been classified as a
“Non-Deposit Taking Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI)”

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with provision contained in section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Division III of Schedule III as amended from time to time. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per Ind AS 7
Statement of Cash Flows.

These financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to
time on accrual basis. The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation for all periods presented.

Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, modified to include Fair valuation of
certain financial instruments, to the extent required or permitted in Ind AS as set out in relavant accounting policies.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakh (INR 00,000) and upto 2 decimal places, except when otherwise indicated.

Fair value measurement
Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic bestinterest.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy in which they fall.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred.

Financial and Non- Financial Classification

Division 111 to Schedule III requires all items in the balance sheet of a NBFC to be classified as either financial or non financial and to be
reflected as such, Further, para 54 of Ind AS 1 also specifies a requirement of presenting financial assets and financial liabilities as line
items of the balance sheet separately from the other items.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions.

These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if ffia ‘their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. 0, 2 )




2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.2

2.3

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
assumptions in these financial statements are:

- Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

- Valuation of financial instruments

- Provisions and contingencies

- Income tax and deferred tax

Significant accounting policies

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from operations

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.When calculating the effective
interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider the expected credit losses.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipments and intangible assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Property, Plant and Equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on written down value method basis using the ratio arrived as per the useful
life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which
such asset is ready to use.

The residual value, useful live and method of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised, only where it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will accrue to the
enterprise and the cost can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as intangible assets under development.

Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finite-life intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the period of their expected useful lives. Intangible assets are amortized over a period of six years on straight line basis as per
the useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Intangible assets acquired / purchased during the year are
amortised on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such assets are ready to use.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised. Such intangible assets are tested for impairment.

The residual value, useful live and method of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. ey -
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2.4.1

2.4.2

ii

iv

vi
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2.5

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value
through profit or loss are added to or deducted from the fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.
Subsequent measurement
Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model. For such equity instruments, the subsequent changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair valued through profit or loss. Fair
value changes are recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost in the separate financial statements.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of equity instruments are recognised as a deduction from equity instrument net of
any tax effects.

Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.A financial liability is derecognized when obligation specified
in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Off-setting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the company currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amount and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefit by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participarg:ytha-tweuldyse the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.6.1

2.6.2

2.7

2.7.1

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable
or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

Level 1 - inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - inputs are other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived prices)

Level 3 - inputs are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a
valuation model based on assumption that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same
instrument nor are they based on available market data.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

Current tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from
initial recognition of goodwill; or initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the
time of transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses and carry forward of unused
tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those temporary differences, losses and tax
credit can be utilized, except when deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences arise from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Impairment
Financial assets

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued
through profit or loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

The impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income / expense in the statement of profit and
loss.




2.7.2

2.8

2.9

Non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists the
company estimates the asset's recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available, If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

Lease
Company as lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Office building. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease,
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.
For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country

of domicile of these leases.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs that company has incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits for salary and wages including accumulated leave that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period in which employees render the related service are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss.

The company measures the expected cost of absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the reporting date. As per Company’s policy, no leave is expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months from the
reporting date.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure,
when an employee renders the related service. .
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2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

The company operates one defined benefit plan for its employees, viz, gratuity plan. The costs of providing benefits under the plan are
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out using the projected unit credit method
made at the end of each reporting date. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprise of actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset)).Re-measurement are recognised in other
comprehensive income and will not be reclassified to profit or loss ina subsequent period.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only be occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company. The company does not recognize a
contingent asset but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Foreign Currency

Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are
measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange difference
All exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank (including demand deposits) and in hand and
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts.Bank overdraft is shown within cash and cash
equivalents.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of materials is determined on weighted average basis. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price less estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is component of the company that engages in the business activity from which the company earns revenues and
incurs expenses, for which discrete financial information is available and whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, in deciding about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The company’s chief
operating decision maker is the Managing Director.
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2.20

2.21

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other assets
and liabilities are disclosed as un-allocable.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. All other expenses which are not
attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as un-allocable expenses.

The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the company as a whole.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of the transactions of non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and items of income or expenses associated with
investing and financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the
impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature
are only disclosed.

Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling
items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and
related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and
equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated
Note 3a- Cash and Cash Equivalents ’
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balances with Banks 2.83 2.96
Less: Book Overdraft - -
Net Balance with Banks (A) 2.83 2.96
Cash on hand (B) 0.23 0.23
Total (A+B) 3.06 3.19
Note 3b- Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Term Deposits with maturity more than 3 months 32.89 317.72
Total 32.89 317.72
Note 4- Loans
(Carried at Amortised Cost, except otherwise stated)
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Unsecured, Considered Good
Term Loan
Total Gross - 200.00
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total Net - 200.00
Note 4(a)- Classification of Loans
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
A.Loans in India
Public Sector - -
Others - 200.00
Gross (i) - 200.00
Less: Impairment loss allowance (if) - -
Net (i) - (ii) - 200.00
B. Loans outside India
Gross (i) - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance (if) - -
Net (i) - (if) - -
Total Net (A+B) - 200.00
Note 6- Other Financial Assets
(Carried at Amortised Cost, except otherwise stated)
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Interest Receivable 0.04 0.01
Interest accured on Fixed Deposit 0.75 -
Balance with GST Authorities - 0.36
Amount Recoverable - 0.04
Total 0.79 0.41
Note 7- Current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Income tax refund due 32.85 -
Total 32.85 -

Standalone
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Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated
Note 8- Property, Plant and Equipment

Grand Total
Particulars Laptop anc 1o

Gross Carrying Value

As at March 31,2022 - -
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2023 - -
Additions 0.47 0.47
Disposals - -
As atMarch 31, 2024 0.47 0.47

Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31,2022 - -
Charge for the year - -

Disposals - -
As atMarch 31,2023 - -
Charge for the year* 0.00 0.00
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 0.00 0.00

Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31,2023 - -

As at March 31, 2024 0.47 0.47
* Exact value is Rs. 24.47

Note 9- Other Intangible Assets

Intellectual Property Grand Total

Particulars Rights

Gross Carrying Value

As atMarch 31,2022 3.56 3.56
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As atMarch 31,2023 3.56 3.56
Additions ' - ' -
Disposals 0.12 0.12
As at March 31, 2024 3.44 3.44
Accumulated Depreciation

As at March 31,2022 - -
Charge for the year 0.17 0.17
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2023 0.17 0.17
Charge for the year 0.16 0.16
Disposals 0.01 0.01
As at March 31,2024 0.33 0.33
Net Carrying Amount

As at March 31,2023 3.39 3.39
As at March 31, 2024 3.11 3.11

Standalone




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053

Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 10- Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) (at amortised cost)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

Asat
31st March, 2023

(Unsecured and Interest Bearing)

Borrowing from Related Parties* 1,553.50 33.50
Borrowing from other than Related Parties** 1,315.95 1,315.95
Total (A) 2,869.45 1,349.45
i) Borrowings in India 2,869.45 1,349.45
ii) Borrowings outside India - -
Total (B) 2,869.45 1,349.45
*Borrowed Rs. 553.50 lakh @ Interest 12% , Repayable in 4 Years
Borrowed Rs. 1,020.00 lakh @ Interest 12% , Repayable in 1 Year
* Borrowed @ Interest 12.5% , Repayable in 1 year
Note 11 - Subordinated Liability (at FVTPL)
. Asat Asat
Particul
artiewars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
(Unsecured)
0.01% Unlisted unsecured redeemable optionally fully convertible debentures 16,425.76 36,511.00
Add:- Remeasurement of financial liabilities 18,446.85 -
Total 34,872.61 36,511.00
Terms / rights attached to 0.01% Unlisted unsecured redeemable optionally fully convertible debentures
a) shall be optionally fully convertible in nature
b) issued for maximum tenure of 10 years from the date of allotment
Note 12- Other Financial Liabilities
: Asat Asat
Particul
articuiars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Creditors for expenses 1.23 0.50
Interest Payable 415.86 164.12
Other Payable 1.77 -
Total 418.86 164.62

Standalone



Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated
Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated
Note 13 - Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (Net)
Particulars Asat Cparged/ Cl_xarged/ Asat
31st March 2023 | (Credited) to P&L | (Credited) to OCI | 31stMarch 2024
Deferred tax liabilities :
-Fair Valuation of equity Instruments measured at FVTOCI
(net) ) ) ) i
-Fair Valuation of equity Instruments measured at FVTPL - (1.15) - (1.15)
-Due to timing difference 0.15 0.13 - 0.28
Total deferred tax liabilities 0.15 (1.02) - (0.87
MAT credit entitlement - - - -
Deferred tax (assets) /liabilities (net) 0.15 (1.02) - (0.87)
Particulars As at C-harged / Cl_xarged/ Asat
31st March 2022 | (Credited) to P&L | (Credited) to OCI | 31st March 2023
Deferred tax liabilities :
-Fair Valuation of equity Instruments measured at FVTOCI
(net) ) ) )
-Fair Valuation of Preference Instruments measured at
FVTPL i i i i
-Due to timing difference - 0.15 - 0.15
Total deferred tax liabilities - 0.15 - 0.15
MAT credit entitlement - - - -
Deferred tax (assets) /liabilities (net) - 0.15 - 0.15
Note 14- Other Non-financial liabilities
. As at As at
Particul
articutars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Provision - 10.62
Statutory dues payable 32.55 18.94
Total 32.55 29.56

Standalone



Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053

Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

Note 15- Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Asat
31st March, 2024

Asat
31stMarch, 2023

Authorised Equity Share Capital

50,60,606 (As at 31.3,2023: 50,60,606) Equity Shares of X 10 each 506.06 506.06
506.06 506.06
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Equity Share Capital
50,60,606 (As at 31.3.2023: 50,60,606) Equity Shares of X 10 each 506.06 506.06
Total 506.06 506.06
(a) Reconciliation of the Equity shares
Asat As at
Particulars 31stMarch, 2024 31stMarch, 2023
No. Amount No. Amount
At the beginning of the period 5,060,606 506.06 5,060,606 506.06
Add: Issued during the period - - - -
Add: [ssued on account of conversion of convertible :
preference shares ) ) °
Less: Bought-back during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,060,606 506.06 5,060,606 506.06
(b) Name of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31stMarch, 2023
No. % holding No. % holding

Equity shares of X 10 each fully paid
Sumit Kumar Narvar 2,404,800 47.52% 2,404,800 47.520%
Poonam Narvar 2,254,500 44.55% 2,254,500 44.550%

4,659,300 92.07% 4,659,300 92.07%
(c) Promoter’s Equity Shareholding
Disclosure of shareholding of Promoters:
Promoter name As at 31stMarch, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 % Change during

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares the year 2023-24
Sumit Kumar Narvar 2,404,800 47.52% 2,404,800 47.52% -
Poonam Narvar 2,254,500 44.55% 2,254,500 44.55% -
Keshav Porwal 100,200 1.98% 100,200 1.98% -
Trident Buildtech Private Limited 250,500 4.95% 250,500 4.95% -
Deepak Vaswan 50,606 1.00% 50,606 1.00% -
Total 5,060,606 100.00% 5,060,606 100.00% -

(e) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

As on 31st March, 2024, the company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share, Each
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recieve remaining assets of the company after distribution of all the preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

Standalone



Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053

Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 16- Other Equity

Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Retained Earnings 3,300.17 2,253.25
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Special Reserve u/s 45IC of the RBI Act, 1934 38.39 -
3,338.56 2,253.25
As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
a) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,253.25 -4,163.80
Add/(Less): Profit/(Loss) for the year 191.95 6,417.05
Add/(Less): Adjustment for prior year 893.35 -
Transfer during the year (38.39) -
Transfer on sale of equity instruments - -
3,300.17 2,253.25
b) Other comprehensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Fair Valuation of investments - net of tax - -
Transfer on sale of equity instruments - -
c) Special Reserve u/s 451C of the RBI Act, 1934
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Transfer during the year 38.39 -
38.39 -

(a) Retained Earnings

(b) Other Comprehensive Income

The description, nature and purpose of each reserve within equity are as follows:

Surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss is the accumulated available profits of the company carried forward from earlier years.
These reserves are free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair values of investment in equity securities (other than investment in
subsidiary, associate and group companies) in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within Other
Comprehensive Income reserve within equity.

(c) Special Reserve u/s 45IC of the RBI Act, 1934
Special Reserve represents reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (“the RBI Act”). In terms of Section 45-
IC of the RBI Act, a Non-Banking Financial Company is required to transfer an amount not less than 20 per cent of its net profit to a
Reserve Fund before declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this Reserve Fund is permitted only for the purposes specified
by RBL

Standalone -



Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053

Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 17- Interest Income

. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on Loan 17.75 15.66
Interest income on Investment in Debentures - -
Interest on deposits with Banks 4.34 12.08
Total 22.09 27.74
Note 18- Dividend Income
. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
On Financial Assets Classified at Fair Value through OCI 56.78 56.78
On Financial Assets Classified at Fair Value through profit and loss - -
Total 56.78 56.78
Note 19- Net gain/ (loss) on fair value change
. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Fair Value gain/ (loss) of investments recognised at FVTPL (10.05) -
Fair Value gain/ (loss) of liabilities recognised at FVTPL 745.04 -
Total (A) 734.98 -
Fair Value Changes:
-Realised - -
-Unrealised 734.98 -
Total (B) 734.98 -
Note 20- Other Operating Income
. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Royalty Income 100.00 100.00
Profit on Sale of Investment - 7,404.88
Total 100.00 7,504.88
Note 21- Other Income
. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Profit on sale of Intangible Assets 0.66 -
Total 0.66 -
Note 22- Finance costs
. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Interest on borrowings (amortised cost) 283.36 386.05
Other Interest Expense 0.01 0.27
Total 283.37 386.32
Note 23- Employee Benefit Expenses
. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Salaries, wages and bonus 0.67 -
Total 0.67 -

Standalone



Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053

Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 24- Other expenses

. For the year For the year
Particulars 202324 202223
Auditors' Fees and Expenses

- As Audit Fees 0.75 0.55

- For Tax Audit 0.50 -
Legal & Professional Charges 1.22 4.53
Bank Charges 2.36 6.67
Commission Expenses - 10.08
Security Transaction Tax - 8.25
Consultancy Charges - 2.27
MCA Filing Fees 0.56 0.31
Corporate social responsibility expense {Refer Note 24(a)} 66.20 -
Custody Fees 1.07 0.07
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.05 2.97
Total 72.71 35.70

Note 24(a)-Details of CSR Expenditure

Pursuant to the applicability of CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) provisions of the Companies Act, 20 13 the details are as below :

. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
i |Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 66.18 -
ii |Amount of expenditure incurred 66.20 -
iii |Shortfall at the end of the year. - -
iv |Total of previous year shortfall - -
v |Reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable
Development of drains &
vi |Nature of CSR activities solar power enabled Not applicable
street lighting
Enterprise over which
vii |Details of related party transactions Caﬁ:g‘ﬁ;:g:::;lz?fhiy Not applicable
Company

Standalone




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 25 - Income Tax
(A) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

. For the year For the year
Parti
articulars 2023-24 2022-23
Current Tax - 750.00
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) (1.02) 0.15
Total (1.02) 750.15
(B) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
. For the year For the year
Parti
articulars 2023-24 2022-23
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total - -
(C) Reconciliation of effective tax
. For the year For the year
P 1
articulars 202324 2022-23
Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 557.60 7,167.21
Tax expense at Statutory Income Tax Rate @ 25.168% (Previous Year 25.168%) - 750.00
Adjustment of tax impact of the following:
Expenses not deductible under the Income Tax Act - -
Income not taxable under the Income tax Act - -
Effect of Unabsorbed Depreciation set off - -
Effect on Deferred Tax due to Fair Value Gain on Investments (1.02) 0.15
Others - -
Income Tax expense reported in Statement of Profit or Loss (1.02) 750.15
Note 26- Other Comprehensive Income
. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Equity instrument measured at fair value through OCI - -
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Income tax relating to equity instrument measured at fair value through OCI - -
Note 27- Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit / (loss) and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(a) Net (loss) / profit for calculation of basic EPS 191.95 6,417.05
Net (loss) / profit for calculation of diluted EPS 191.95 6,417.05
(b) Weighted average nurmber of equity shares during the year - Basic 5,060,606 5,060,606
Effect of dilution:
Add : Weighted average number of convertible preference shares - -
Weighted average number of shares in calculating diluted EPS 5,060,606 5,060,606
Earning Per Share - Basic (%) 3.79 126.80
Earning Per Share - Diluted (3) 3.79 126.80
Face Value per share (%) 10 10

Standalone



Notes To The Standal Fi

ial Stat:

Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053

Note 28(a): Related Party Transaction
Details Of Related Parties

ts For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Name of Company/Entity Description of relationship

Capital India Home Loans Ltd
Capital India Finance Limited
Credenc Web Technologies Pvt Ltd

Step Down Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company

Capital India Wealth Management Pvt Ltd, Wholly Owned Subsidiary
CIFL Holdings Pvt Ltd. Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Capital India Asset Management Pvt Ltd Step Down Subsidiary Company
Rapipay Fintech Pvt Ltd Step Down Subsidiary Company
][\ng] Investech Pvt Ltd (Formerly Kuants Wealth Pvt Step Down Subsidiary Company

Yellow Whale Technologies Pvt Ltd
NYE Insurance Broking Pvt Ltd

Subsidiary Company

Step Down Subsidiary Company w.e.f. June 01, 2022

Atulya Foundation Enterprise over which control is exercised by the subsidiary of the Company
Sitaram Niwas Pvt Ltd Enterprise Under which KMP has significant influence

Trident Buildtech Pyt Ltd Enterprise Under which KMP has significant influence

Key Management Personnel Description of relationship

Sumit Kumar Narvar Chairman & Managing Director

Keshav Porwal Non Executive Director

Deepak Vaswan Non Executive Director

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and tanding balances thereof

Enter nder which KMP has significant Influence
Particulars Trident Buildtech | Credenc Web Capital India Capital India |Yellow Whale| Rapipay Key
PvtLtd Technologies Pvt| Home Loans Ltd | Finance Ltd | Technologies| FintechPvt management Total
Ltd PvtLtd Ltd personnel
Balances outstanding in the beginning of the - - - - - - - -
Reporting Period
Amount Payable 36,544.50 - - - - - - 36,544.50
Amount Receivable - 200.00 - - 322,90 - - 522.90
ransaction during the vear
Loan Received 1,520.00 - - - - - B 1,520.00
Loan Given - 720.00 - - - - - 720.00
Royalty [ncome - - 35.40 82.60 - - 118.00
Dividend Income - - - 56.78 - - 56,78
Unlisted Loan Convertible into Equity Shares - 937.72 - - B - - 937.72
Investment in Equity Shares - 747.00 - - - - - 747.00
Trandemark Transfer Income - - - - - 092 - 0.92
Amount Received - - 3240 126,70 - 0.92 - 160.02
Amount Paid - - - - - - - -
Interest Paid on Debenture and Unsecured Loans 3.29 - - - - - - 3.29
TDS Receivable - - 3.00 12.68 - - - 15,68
Interest on Debenture and Loan Given (Net of TDS) - 17.72 - - 0.03 - - 17.75
Interest on Loan Received (Net of TDS) 106.98 - - - - - - 106.98
Balances o! nding at the end of the Repo;
|Period
| Amount Payable 38,168.19 - - - - - - 38,168.19
Amount Receivable - - - - 32293 - - 322.93

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.




Capital India Corp Private Limited

CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 28(b): Related Party Transaction
Details Of Related Parties

Name of Company/Entity

Description of rel

Capital India Home Loans Ltd

Capital India Finance Limited

Credenc Web Technologies Pvt Ltd
Capital India Wealth Management Pvt Ltd.
CIFL Holdings Pvt Ltd.

Capital India Asset Management Pvt Ltd
Rapipay Fintech Pvt Ltd

Kuants Wealth Pvt Ltd

Yellow Whale Technologles Pvt Ltd
NYE Insurance Broking Pvt Ltd

Atulya Foundation

Step Down Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsldiary Company

Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Wholly Owned Subsidlary

Step Down Subsidiary Company

Assoclate Company

Step Down Subsidiary (w.e.f. April 18,2022)
Subsidiary Company

Step Down Subsidlary Company w.ef. June 01, 2022
Enterprise over which control s exercised by the subsidiary of the Company

Sitaram Niwas Pvt Ltd Enterprise Under which KMP has significantinfluence
Trident dtech Pvt Ltd Enterprise Under which KMP has significant Influence
Key Man Pe il Description of relationship

Sumit Kumar Narvar
Keshav Porwal
Deepak Vaswan

Chalrman & Managing Director
Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director

Details of related party transactions during the ye:

r ended 31st March, 2023 and outstanding bal; thereof

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management,

Enterprise under which KMP has significant Influence
Particulars Trident Buildtech | CredencWeb | Capital India | CapitalIndia | Capitalindia |Yellow Whale Rapipay CIFL Holding Key
PvtLtd Technologies Pvt| Home Loans Finance Ltd Wealth Technologies| Fintech Pvt PvtLtd management Total
Ltd Itd Management PvtLtd Ltd personnel
Pyt Lid

dingintheb ofthe - - - - - - - - - -
Renorting Period
Amount Payable 41417.30 - - - - . - - - 41,417.30
Amount 1 - - - - - - - - - -
Loan Recelved 81188 - - - - - - - - 811.88
Loan Given - 200.00 - - - - - - - 200.00
Rovalty Income - - 41.89 97.94 - - - - 139.83
Credit note against rovalty income - - 5.50 13.00 - - - - 18.50
Dividend Income - - - 56.78 - - - - 56.78
Investmentin Shares - - - - 2.00 - - 2.00 - 4.00
Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures . . . N . 322.89 N . _ 322.89
Sale of investments - - - - - - 140653 - - 1,406.53
Amount Recelved - 146 3639 14172 - - - - - 179.57
Amount Paid 1,144.97 - - - 2.00 - - 2.00 - 1,148.97
Interest Pald on Debenture and Unsecured Loans 444 - - - - - - - - 444
Interest on Debenture and Loan Given (Net of TDS) 12.62 146 - - - 0,01 - - - 14.09
Debenture Redeemed 4,535.00 - - - - - - - - 4,535.00
Interest on Loan Received (Net of TDS) 1235 - - - - - - - - 12.35

j ding at the end of the Reporting

Period
Amount Payable 36,544.50 - N - - - - - - 36,544.50
Amount Receivable - 200.00 - - - 32290 - - - 522.90




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated
Note 29: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Nil

Note 30: Other Regulatory Information
(i) No proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company under Prohibition of Benami Property Transaction Act, 1988, read with rules made thereunder.

(i) The Company does not have any transaction with companies Stuck Off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or under section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(iii) The Company is not categories or declared as wilful defaulter by any Bank and Financial Institution or Other Lender.

(iv) The Management of the company represents that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds {(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or|
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities|
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management of the company further represents, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been recefved by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any|
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(v) The Company had not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or|
jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(vi) The company does not have any immovable property hence the requirement of title deeds is not applicable.
(vii) The company does not have any Capital Work in Progress (CWIP).

(viif) The company has notrevalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(iX) The company does not have any intangible assets under development.

(X) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers)
Rules, 2017.
(xi) During the year company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sectlon 73 to 76 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax|
Act, 1961,

(xiii) The Company has not borrowed any funds from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the year.

(xiv) No charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies (ROC) are pending to be registered by MCA.

(xv) Company is not subjected to any scheme of arrangement by the Competent Authority in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(xvi) There are no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year.

(xvil) The company have not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year

(xvii{) The Company has not given any advance or loan or invested funds from share premium or any other sources with the understanding that intermediary would directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other person or entity identified as ultimate beneficiaries or provide any guarantee or security on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries. The Company has not received any fund
from any person or entity with the understanding that the Company would directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entity identified as ultimate beneficiary or provide any
guarantee or secuirty or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary.

(xix) The Company has not proposed any dividend during the year in view of its future plans for expansion.

Standalone



Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 31(a)- Financial Instruments:

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments of the Company:

As at31stMarch, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Cost/Amortised X
Cost FVTPL Fvroar | ©O5Y ’2?;2"‘“‘1 FVTPL FVTOCI
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.06 - - 319 - -
Bank balance other than cash and cash
equivalents 32.89 - - 317.72 - -
Loans - - - 200.00 - -
Investments 41,962.54 151 - 40,289.38 - -
Other Financial assets 0.79 - - 0.41 - -
Total 41,999.28 1.51 - 40,810.70 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowing (other than debt securities) 2,869.45 - - 1,349.45 - -
Subordinated liabilities - 34,872.61 - 36,511 - -
Other financial liabilities 418.86 - - 164.62 - -
Total 3,288.31 | 34,872.61 - 38,025.08 - -

Fair Valuation Techniques:
The Company maintains policies and procedures to value Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities using the best and most relevant data available, The Fair Values of the Financial Assets and
Liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other current financial liability at carrying vatue because their carrying
amounts are a reasonable approximation of the fair values due to their short term nature.
Fair value of Investment in Quoted Equity Shares is based on quoted market price at the reporting date and for unquoted, it is determined as per IND AS 113.

Note 31(b)- Fair Value hierarchy

All financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured In the standalone financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows: -
Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities, which have been measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value as at|
31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023:

Assets / Liabilities measured at fair value Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year Using
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at31st March 2024

Assets at fair value

Investments - - 41,964.05 41,964.05

Liabilities at fair value

Subordinate Liabilities - - 34,872.61 34,872.61

As at31stMarch 2023

Assets at fair value

investments - - 40,289.38 40,289.38

Liabilities at fair value

Subordinate Liabilitles - - 36,511.00 36,511.00

During the Year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023, there was no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3

A one percent point change in the unobservable inputs used in fair valuation of level 3 assets and liabilities does not have a significant impact in its value,
The fair values of the quoted equity instruments were determined on the bass of the closing price on the last day of the financial year. In respect of unlisted equity instruments measured at|
FVTOCI, fair value is determined based on the estimation of valuation by the management. The fair value of unquoted investments in preference shares are estimated by discounting future
cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.The estimation is based on level 3 inputs like net assets value etc.

Impact in statement of profit and loss:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Opening balance of investments valued using level 3 inputs 40,289.38 40,289.38

Add/(less): Purchase of Investment 1,684.72 -

Add/(less): Sale of Investment - -
Add/(less): Redemption of Investment - -

Add/(less): Fair value changes for the year recognised in OCI (10.05) -
Closing balance of investments valued using level 3 inputs 41,964.05 40,289.38

Standalone
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CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 32: Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's activities are exposed to market risk (interest risk) and liquidity risk from its operations.

Market Risk: Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may results from change in the price of a financial
_instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as result of change in the interest rates and other market changes may affect market risk sensitive
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments, security deposit, payables and loans and borrowings. Market prices
comprise of interest rate risk.

Currency Risk .
The Company does not have any transaction in foreign currency and hence is not exposed to currency risk.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company is not exposed to the risk of changes in market interest rates as the company's borrowings comprise of loans with fixed rate of interest.

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as the result of changes in the level of equity indices and individual stocks. The Company
manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are
submitted to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company’s approach is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due. The Company relies excess operating cash flows to meet its needs for funds. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

Particulars Carrying Amounts Lels;‘?:n 1-3 Years More than 3 Years
As at 31st March 20284

Borrowings 37,742.06 2,335.95 - 35,406.11
Other Financial Liabilities 418.86 418.86 - -
As at 31st March 2023

Borrowings 37,860.45 1,315.95 - 36,544.50
Other Financial Liabilities 164.62 164.62 - -
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company’s trade, cash and cash equivalents and investments. The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the financial
instruments covered below is restricted to their respective carrying amount.

Trade Receivables
The Company does not have an exposure to credit risk from customers since the Company does not have any trade receivables.

Cash & Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of X 0.23 lakhs as at 31st March 2024 (% 0.23 lakhs as at 31st March 2023) and bank deposits (including other
bank balances) of % 35.72 lakhs as at 31st March 2024 (X 320.68 lakhs as at 31st March 2023). These are held with credit worthy banks and financial
institutions and the credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be
good. :

Investments
The company had limited its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid debt securities that have an investment grade credit rating . The company monitors
changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings.

Other Financial Assets
Credit risk from other financial instruments has not increased significantly since initial recognition, accordingly the expected probability of default is low.

Exposure to the Credit Risks
The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment recognised represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum credit exposure as
at 31.03.2024 and as at 31.03.2023 is as follows:

Particulars . As at31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Investments 41,964.05 40,289.38
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.06 3.19
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 32.89 317.72
Loans - 200.00
Other Financial Assets 0.79 0.41
Total 42,000.79 40,810.70

Standalone
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Note 33:

Segment Information

According to Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, identification of operating segments is based on Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) approach for making|
decisions about allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance. The company operates within India and the business activity of the company
falls within one broad business segment,

Note 34- Capital Management

The Company operates as an Investment Company and consequently is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Core investment Company -Non
deposit taking- systemically important (NBFC-CIC-NDSI) with Reserve Bank of India (RBI).The Company'’s policy is to maintain an adequate capital base so as to
market confidence and to sustain future development. Capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders. The primary
objective of the Company'’s capital management is to maintain an optimal structure so-as to maximize the shareholder's value, In order to strengthen the capital
base, the company may use appropriate means to enhance or reduce capital, as the case may be.

The Company is not subject to any external imposed capital requirement. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. Net Debt is calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Sub-ordinated liabilities 34,872.61 36,511.00
Borrowings 2,869.45 1,349.45
Less: Cash & Cash equivalent (3.06) (3.19)
Net Debt 37,739.00 37,857.26
Equity Share Capital 506.06 506.06
Other Equity 3,338.56 2,253.25
Total Capital 3,844.62 2,759.31

Capital and Net Debt 41,583.61 40,616.57
Gearing Ratio 90.75% 93.21%

Standalone
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Note 35: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Within 12 months| After 12 months Total wnllt:xllltlhlsz After 12 months Total
ASSETS
1. Financial Assets
(a) Cashand Cash Equivalents 3.06 - 3.06 319 - 3.19
(b) Ban}( balance other than cash and cash 18.26 14.63 32.89 317.72 ) 317.72
equivalents above
{c) Loans - - - 200.00 - 200.00
(d) Investments - 41,964.05 41,964.05 - 40,289.38 40,289.38
(e) Other Financial assets 0.04 0.75 0.79 0.40 0.01 0.41
2. Non Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (net) 32.85 - 32.85 - - -
(b} Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.47 047 B - -
(c) Other Intangible Assets - 311 3.11 - 3.39 3.39
LIABILITIES
1. Financial Liabilities
(a) Borrowing (other than debt securities) 2,335.95 37,044.50 | 39,380.45 1,315.95 36,544.50 37,860.45
(b) Subordinated Liabilities - 34,872.61 34,872.61 - 36,511.00 36,511.00
(c) Other financial liabilities 418.86 - 418.86 - 164.62 164.62
2. Non Financial Liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - - - 0.15 0.15
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 32.55 - 32.55 29.56 - 29.56

Note 36: Additional RBI Disclosure

A. Group entities that are not consolidated in the Consolidated Financial Statements: Nil

B. Components of Adjusted Net Worth (ANW) and other related informations:-

value of quoted investments

. Asat Asat
Particulars 31stMarch 2024 | 31stMarch 2023
ANW as a % of Risk Weighted Assets 53.78% 28.31%
Unrealised appreciation in the book 18,728.09 8,709.31

Diminution in the aggregate book value
of quoted investments

Leverage Ratio

1.69

3.32

C. Investment in other CICs:-

D. Off Balance Sheet Exposure - Nil
E. Investments at carrying value

S.No. Particulars

Asat
31st March 2024

Asat
31stMarch 2023

1 [Value of Investments

Gross value of Investments

a) In India

41,964.05

40,289.38

b) Outside India

Provision for Depreciation

a) In India

b) Outside India

Net value of Investments

a) In India

41,964.05

40,289.38

b) Outside India

2 |Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments

Opening Balance

Add: Provision made during the year

Less: Write off /write back of excess
provisions during the year

Closing Balance

F. Business Ratios

Particulars

As at|
31stMarch 2024

Asat
31stMarch 2023

Return on Equity (ROE)

37.93%

1268.04%

Return on Assets (ROA)

0.46%

15.72%

Net Profit per employee (in Rs. Lakhs)

63.98

2,139.02

Formula to calculate Business ratios:-

Return on Equity (ROE) = Net profit after tax/Share Capital
Return on Assets (ROA) = Total Comprehensive Income/Average Total Assets
Net profit per Employee = Net profit after tax/No. of employees
*Net profit after tax includes fair valuation impact.

(a) Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made by one CIC in another CIC (including name of CIC) - Nil
(b) Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution exceeds 10% of owned funds - Nil
() Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution is less than 10% of owned funds - Nil

Standalone
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G. Provisions and Contingencies:-

Breakup of 'Provisions and

. . As at Asat
S.No.| Contingencies' shown under the Profit 31st March 2024 | 31stMarch 2023
and Loss Account
1 Provisions for depreciation on R R
" |investment
Provision towards NPA - -
Provision made towards Income Tax
-1.02 750.15
3 (shown below Profit Before Tax) 50.1
" | Current Tax - 750.00
Deferred Tax (1.02) 0.15
4 Tax impact on Other Comprehensive R .
" {Income
5 Other Provision and Contingencies (with 3 R
" |details)
H. Concentration of NPAs
. Exposure as a % of|
Particulars Amount Fotal Assets
Total Exposure to top five NPA accounts B R
1. ALM - Maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities
over 3 month
15 days to over 1 month | over 2 month &
Particulars Period 1to 7 days 8to 1.‘% days 30/31 days upto 2 months | upto 3 months &upto 6
@®H (ii) (i) ) ™ months
i)
31st March 2024 - - - - -
Loans and Advances 31st March 2023 - - - - -
31st March 2024 - - - - -
Investments 31st March 2023 - - - - -
Borrowings 31st March 2024 - - - - -
31st March 2023 - - - - -
ALM - Maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities (contd....)
over 6 month & |over1year &| over3years & over 5 vears Total
Particulars Period upto 1 year upto 3 years | upto 5 years (x;, (i+ii+iii+ivevevi
(vii) (viii) (ix) +vii+viii+ix+x)
31st March 2024 - - - -
Loans and Advances 31st March 2023 200,00 - - 200.00
Investments 31st March 2024 - - 41,964.05 41,964.05
31st March 2023 - - 40,289.38 40,289.38
. 31st March 2024 2,751.81 533.50 34,872.61 38,157.93
Borrowings 31st March 2023 1,480.07 36,511.00 38,024.57

]. Miscellaneous Disclosures

a) Registration/license/authorisation, by whatever name called, obtained from other financial sector regulators - RBI REGN. No.: N-14.03600
b) Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators including structures and directions on the basis of inspection reports or other adverse findings - Nil

¢) If the auditor has expressed any modified opinion(s) or other reservation(s) in his audit report or limited review report in respect of the financial results of any previous

financial year or quarter which has an impact on the profit or loss of the reportable period, with notes on - Not Applicable
(1) How the modified opinion(s) or other reservations has been resolved - Not Applicable
(ii) If the same has not been resolved, the reason thereof and the steps which the CIC intends to take in the matter -Not Applicable

Standalone
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Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2024

Note 37: Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The following table represents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master neting agreements and
other similar agreements but not off set, as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023, The column net amount shows the impact of the

Company's balance sheet if all set offs were exercised.

Effects of offsetting in the balance sheet Related amounts not offset
Pparticulars Gross amount Net amounts ::S;l::z Financial
Gross amounts setoffinthe [presented in the . instrument | Netamount
balance sheet balance sheet master netting collateral
agreement
As at31st March, 2024
1. Financial Assets
(a) Cashand Cash Equivalents 3.06 - 3.06 - - 3.06
b) Bank balance other than cash
®) and cash equivalents above 3289 ) 3289 ) ) 3289
(c) Loans - - - - - -
(d) Investments 41,964.05 - 41,964.05 - - 41,964.05
(e) Other Financial assets 0.79 - 0.79 - - 0.79
42,000.79 - 42,000.79 - - 42,000.79
2. Financial Liabilities
(a) Borro.v‘{ing (other than debt 2,869.45 : 2,869.45 } } 2,869.45
securities)
(b) Subordinated Liabilities 34,872.61 - 34,872.61 - - 34,872.61
(c) Other financial liabilities 418.86 - 418.86 - - 418.86
38,160.93 - 38,160.93 - - 38,160.93
As at 31st March, 2023
1. Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.19 - 3.19 - - 3.19
(b) Bank balance.other than cash 317.72 } 317.72 ~ } 317.72
and cash equivalents above
(c) Loans 200.00 - 200.00 - - 200.00
(d) Investments 40,289.38 - 40,289.38 - - 40,289.38
(e) Other Financial assets 0.41 - 041 - - 0.41
40,810.70 - 40,810.70 - - 40,810.70
2. Financial Liabilities
(a) Borro.mfing (other than debt 1,349.45 ; 1,349.45 } : 1,349.45
securities)
(b) Subordinated Liabilities 36,511.00 - 36,511.00 - - 36,511.00
(c) Other financial liabilities 164.62 - 164.62 - - 164.62
38,025.07 - 38,025.07 - - 38,025.07
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Note 38- Analytical Ratios

Particulars Asat Asat
31stMarch 2024 | 31stMarch 2023
Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR] (%) 53.78% 28.31%
Tier | CRAR (%) 9.15% 6.81%
Tier Il CRAR (%) NA NA
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 1.69 3.32

Note 39- Other Notes

i. Gratuity and other terminal benefit are not applicable since the company is not having minimum stipulated number of employees. Accordingly Ind AS-19 is not|
applicable to the company.

ii. Based on the information available with the Company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 payable to enterprises covered under “Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006”. No interest is paid/payable by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

iii. The information as required in terms of para 21 of the Master Direction- Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016 attached (Annexure - I).

iv. The physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipments & Intangible Assets were carried out at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were found on
such verification. No personal expenses of employees or directors have been charged to revenue account, except those payable under contractual obligations or in|
accordance with generally accepted business.

v. As per the internal assessment of the company, there is no non financial asset requiring allowance for impairment in compliance of IND AS 36 on “Impairment of]
Assets” other than already provided / disclosed.

vi. No provision for Current Income Tax has been made since there being no taxable income. Deffered Tax is recognised in respect of timing difference relating to book
and tax depreciation in accordance with IND AS, on 'Accounting for Taxes on Income’

vil. Figures for the previous year have been reclassified/ recasted/ regrouped, wherever considered necessary

Standalone Balance Sheet of Company as per Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 attached as (Annexure 1). _

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 02638N
UDIN: 24088309BKCN KH§845

For and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

o

CA Ashwani Kr. Relan
Partner

M. No. 088309

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.06.2024
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CAPITAL INDIA CORP PRIVATE LIMITED
Particulars as per RBI Master Directions as at 31.03.2024

Annexure 1

(as required in terms of Paragraph 21 of Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.)

X in lakhs
Particulars
Liabilities side :
D Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs Amount Amount
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid: Outstanding | Overdue
(a) | Debentures: Secured - -
: Unsecured 34,872.61 -
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits)
(b) | Deferred Credits - -
() | Term Loans - -
(d) | Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 3,285.31 -
(e) | Commercial Paper - -
0 Other Loans (specify nature) - -
Assets side: Amount outstanding
(2) Break - up of Loans and Advances including
bills receivables [other than those included
in (4) below]:
(a) Secured -
(b) Unsecured -
3 Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire
and other assets counting towards
AFC activities -
(4) Break-up of Investment :
a Current Investment : -
b Long term Invetments
1 Quoted:
(i)| Shares: (a)Equity -
(b) Preference -
(ii)] Debentures and Bonds -
(iii)| Units of mutual funds -
(iv)] Government Securities -
(v)| Others (please specify) -
2 Unquoted :
(i)[ Shares: (a) Equity 41,641.16
(b) Preference -
(ii)| Debentures and Bonds 322.89
(iii}| Units of mutual funds -
(iv)] Government Securities -
(v)| Others (please specify) -




CAPITAL INDIA CORP PRIVATE LIMITED
Particulars as per RBI Master Directions as at 31.03.2024
(as required in terms of Paragraph 21 of Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.)

Xin lakhs
(5) [Borrower group-wise classification of all assets, financed as in (2) and (3) above
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total

1 |Related Parties *

(a)| Subsidiaries - - -

(b)| Companies in the same group - - -

(c)| Other related parties - - -

2 |Other than related parties - - -
Total - - -
Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and

() unquoted):
Market Value / Break Book Value
Category up or fair value or (Net of
NAV ** Provisions)

1 |Related Parties * .

(a)| Subsidiaries (including step down subsidiary) 74,878.22 41,964.05
{b)| Companies in the same group - -
(c)] Other related parties - -

2 |{Other than related parties : - -

Total 74,878.22 41,964.05

*  As per Accounting Standard of ICAL

**  For the purpose of Market/Break-up value, Quoted Share/ Units have been valued at Market Price as on 31.03.2024. The Unquoted Shares
have been valued as per Break-up value calculated as per the Audited Balance Sheets as on 31.03.2024 and in case where the Audited
Balance Sheet as on 31,03.2024 are not available, Break-up value has been calculated based upon the management certified accounts drawn
up as on 31,03.2024.

(7) |Other information

Particulars Amount

(i) |Gross Non - Performing Assets -
(i) [NetNon - Performing Assets -
(iii) |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 02638N /
UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845

CA Ashwani Kr. Relan SumitKu arvar|
Partner ' Chairma Managing Di
n

For and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

M. No. 088309 DIN: 02045194
Place: New Delhi
Date: 29.06.2024




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of Capital India Corp Private Limited,
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (“IND AS Financial Statements™),

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Capital India Corp Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) and associate of subsidiary which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of changes in equity and the
Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
iy India including the IND AS, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and associate of
subsidiary as at 31st March, 2024 and their consolidated Loss (including other comprehensive income)
and consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinicn

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and associate of subsidiary
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with ihe ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICADs Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters Reported by Auditor of Subsidiary Company being reproduced

1) Key audit matters are those matters that, in audit report of subsidiary company, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thercon, and we do not provide a separate opinion op these
matfers.
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AVK & Associates

2) The Auditors of subsidiary company have determined the matters described below to be the key

audit matters to he communica

and Advances
As at March 31, 2024,

allowance of ECL

The estimation of

and estimates. As

the following:
) Data inputs - The

in staging the toan
amortized cost.

an unbiased
reflecting a range
conditions.

to address emerging

y audit matters

Expected Credit Loss (ECL

joan assets measured at amortized cost,
aggregated Rs. 1,25,830.39 lakhs (net of

constituting approximate'ly 70% of the
Company’s total assets.

instruments involves significant judgement

assessment, We determined that the
allowance for ECL on loan assets has a
high degree of estimation uncertainty, with
a potential range of reasonable outcOMES
for the financial statements.

The elements of estimating ECL which
involved increased level of audit focus are

model requires several data inputs.

b) Model estimations  — inherently
judgmental models are used 0 estimate
EcL  which involves determining

Probabilities of Default ("PD"), Loss Given
Default ("LGD"), and Exposures at Default
(“EAD"). The PD and the LGD are the key
drivers of estimation complexity in the
ECL and as a result are considered the
most significant judgmental aspect of the
Group’s modeliing approach.

y Qualitative and quantitative factors used

) Economic scenarios — Ind AS 109
requires the Group to measure ECLs oOn
forward-looking basis

Significant
judgement is applied in determining the
economic  scenarios used and the
probability weights applied to them.

) Adjustments to model driven ECL results

) on Loans

the carrying value of

of Rs. 2,543.71)

ECL on financial

part of oW risk

application of ECL

assets measured at

of future economic
management

trends.

How audit addressed the key audit matter
Audit Approach:
Audit approach was @ combination of test of

internal  controls and substantive procedures
which included the following:

a)

% key controls over the completeness and

b)

% we test checked over key inputs, data and

ted in our report as it is:

testing the design ang effectiveness of
internal controls over the following:

acouracy of the key inputs, data and
assumptions  into the Ind AS 109
impairment models.

key controls over the application of the
staging criteria  consistent with  the
definitions applied in accordance with the
policy approved by the Board of Directors
including the appropriateness of the
qualitative factors. ,
management's controls over authorisation
and calcutation of post model adjustments
and management overlays to the output of
the ECL model.

Also, for ‘a sample of ECL allowance On
loan assets tested:

assumptions impacting ECL calculations
to assess the completeness, goouracy
and relevance of data; and

we tested the mathematical accuracy and
computation of the allowances by using
the same input data used by the Group.

evaluated the adequacy of the adjustment
after  stressing  the inputs  used in
determining the output as per the ECL
Model, including management overiays.

evaluated the management judgement,
governance process and review controls
and  discussed the  process and
assumptions for identification of
provisioning for ECL on loans with senior
management including  Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Head of
Credit and Risk

assessed the updated model methodology
by evaluating the changes for models which
were changed or updated during.the year. -
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Key audit matters

How audit addressed the key audit matter

5
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fy assessed the disclosures included in the
Financial Statements in respect of expected
credit losses cae -

Refer Note 28 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

ey
2. information Technology (IT) Systems Audit Approach:

and Controls

Audit approach was a combination of test of
The Group's key financial information are ! internal controls and substantive procedures
highly dependent on the automated controls | which included the following:
over the Group’s information systems, such
that there exists a risk that gaps in the 1T
general controt environment could result in
a misstatement of the financial accounting
and reporting records. Accordingly, we
have considered user access management,
segregation of duties and controls over
system change over key financial
accounting and reporting systems, as a key
audit matter. User access controls operation:

% obtained management's evaluation of the
access Tights granted to applications
relevant to financial accounting and
reporting systems and tested resolution of
a sample of expectations.

» assessed the operating effectiveness of
controls over granting, removal and
appropriateness of access rights.

1
1

General IT controls design, observation and

operation:

3 tested key controls operating over the
information technology in relation to
financial information, including  system
access and system change management,
program development  and eomputer
operations.

R PO R T SR

S T T ST S

Application controls:

% f{ested the design and operating
effectiveness of automated controls -critical
to financial accounting and reporting.

> tested the design and  operating
effectiveness of compensating controls for
any identified deficiencies and where
necessary, extended the scopé of our
substantive audit procedure.

» considered the reporis issued by the
professional consultants with respect to
Information Systems (iS) Audit and T
Infrastructure of the Group.

i
K]
i
]
3
o
4
i
]
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2
.
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3. Revenue Recognition under ind AS 115, | Audit Approach:
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Audit included, but were not - limited. o, the
Refer Note 215 to the Consolidated | following procedures:

Financial Statements for the accounting
policy on revenue recognition and details of | » Obtained an understanding from the

T T T I EE R

revenue recognised from different revenue management of the nature of revenue
streams during the year ended 31 March transactions, revenue recognition process
2024. and evaluated the appropriateness of the ‘

accounting  policy adopted by the
management in accordance with Ind AS

S U N i
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Key audit matters How audit addressed the key audit ma'ster——1
The Step down subsidiary Company, | » Evaluated the design and tésted the
Rapipay Fintech Private Limited derives its operating effectiveness of internal financial
revenue primarily from  rendering ~ of controls refating to the application of
f'“af‘c‘a‘ services using a network f.Jf Dar_ect revenue accounting standard specifically
Bu§|ness Outlets (DBO.S) upon satisfaction those relating to principal versus agent
g; x(t:inr?;aorlfotrom?; gecsgt‘égr:grjr}h 1'2&3222?5; considerations, identification of the distinct
with the principles of Ind AS 115, Revenue performan(_:e obl_lgatlons and determination
from Contracts with Customers (Ind AS of transaction price.
118).
» Tested the relevant information technology
Owing to the multiplicity of the services systems’ access and change management
offered by the Subsidiary Company and controls and related informationfreports
diverse terms of contracts with DBOs and used in recording and presenting revenue
service providers which also involves use of i accordance with the revenue accounting
multiple technology solutions and manual standard.
reconciliations, revenue is determined to be
an area involving significant risk and hence, | 5. selected a sample of revenue transactions
requiring significant auditor attention. recorded during the year and performed the
Further, the application of Ind AS 1151 . following procedures: o
involves  significant judgements/ material (i) Read, analysed and identified the distinct
estimates relating to principal versus agent performance  obligations as  per the
considerations, identification of  distinct contract.
performance obligations, determination of | (i) Compared such performance obligations
transaction price, and the appropriateness with those identified and recorded by the
of the basis used to mr_aasure revenue management;
recognised at a point in time and over a | (ii) Evaluated contract terms to determine the
period of time, depending upon nature of wransaction price and satisfaction of
revenue stream. performance  obligations under  the
. - contracts  for  appropriate  revenue
Considering the materiality of amounts recognition pprop
involved, significance of the area to the '
financial  statements, combined  with . .
significant  judgments and  estimates »  Performed substantive . analytlpal
involved. revenue recognition is considered procedures on revenue recognised during
to be a key audit matter for the current year the year such customer wise variance
audit, analysis, product wise analysis, for
reasonablenass of revenue recognised.

% Tested unusual non-standard  journal
eniries impacting revenue based on risk-
based criteria. ' '

» Assessed the  appropriateness: and
adequacy of disclosures included in the
financial statements, in accordance with the
requirements of ind AS 116,

|
Page 4 of 15
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Sr. Key audit matters

No.
4,

Impairment assessment of carrying
value of investment in subsidiary:

The step down subsidiary, Rapipay Fintech
private Limited had investments in its
subsidiary, NYE Investec Private Limited
(formally known as Kuants Wealth Private
Limited), amounting Rs. 2,256 Lakhs. The
step down subsidiary Company accounts
for equity investments in subsidiary at cost
(subject to impairment assessment).

The subsidiary of step down subsidiary has
incurred losses in the current year and the
carrying value of such investments exceed
the net worth of the subsidiary. Considering
the existence of aforesaid impairment
indicators in the current year, the
Subsidiary Company has assessed the
recoverable value of investment by
comparing the fair value (less costs of
disposal) and carrying amount of the
investment as on the reporting date in
accordance with Ind AS 36, impairment of
assets,

The management estimate of the
recoverable amounts of the investment has
been determined through discounted cash
flow model with the help of a management
expert. Such valuation method involves
significant judgment in carrying out the
impairment assessment and the key
assumptions included estimates around
inputs that are not directly observable from
market information and certain  other
unchservable inputs. The key inputs and
judgments involved in the impairment of
investments include:

i) Forecast cash flows including

assumptions on growth rates.
i) Discount rates.
i} Terminal growth rate.

Changes to these assumptions could lead
to material changes In estimated
recoverable amounts, resulting in
impairment.

Based on the aforesaid assessment, the
management has concluded that no
provision for jmpairment was necessary as
at 31 March 2024.

~"mfwr»<,-:':vo'z-r%r~««wwmamw&vwwﬁﬁmwwwawm;wwwmL’m"

How audit addressed the key audit matter

-

Audit Approach:

Audit procedures in relation to the impairment
in step down
subsidiary inciuded, but were not limited to the

assessment  of investment
following:

> Obtained an understanding of

management's process for identification of

possinle impairment indicators.

> Evaluated the design and

impairment assessment.

» Obtained the management's external

valuation specialist's report
determination of recoverable value.

assessed the professional competency
and objectivity of management's expert
for performing the required valuation of

investment in subsidiary.

¥ Involved auditor's valuation expetts fo

assess the appropriateness of
valuation methodologies used by
management expert and reviewed
appropriateness  of key
assumptions  including

rates, discount rate,
amongst  others used
discounted cash flow model.

within

» Evaluated and challenged management's
assumptions such as implied growth rates
during explicit period and discount rate for

their reasonableness based on
understanding of the business of

subsidiary, past results and external

factors such as industry trends
forecasts.

» Reconciled the cash flow projections used
approve

in aforesaid valuations to
business plans.

> Obtained sensitivity analysis performed by

the management on key assumptions and
reasonably
foreseeable change in assumptions could
lead to impairment or material change in

evaluated whether any

the carrying value.

Evaluated the appropriateness and adequacy of
the disclosures made in the financial statementﬂ

tested
operating effectiveness of the controls
over the Subsidiary Company’s process of

valuation
the estimates
relating to cash flow projections, growth
terminal "~ value,

the

on
We

the
the
the

the

our
the

and
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Sr. Key audit matters How audit addressed the key audit matter

Considering the materiality of the carrying | in respect of impairment assesstment of the
amounts of investment in the step down | investment in  subsidiary as required by
supsidiary, the inherent subjectivity, | applicable financial reporting framework.

complexity, and significance of the
judgments involved, we have considered

impairment assessment of aforesaid
investment in subsidiary to be a key audit

matter for the current year's audit.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Theyreon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report and Annexures to
Board’s Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this context.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance of the Group and associate of subsidiary in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and associate of subsidiary and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irrogularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability

of the Group and associate of subsidiary to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
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AVK & Associates

cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do
50,

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance; but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to ‘nfluence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements is
included in “Annexure A” of this auditor’s report.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary company consolidated with figures of step down
subsidiary companies and associates, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 62262.46
lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total revenues of Rs. 68011.39 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to
Rs. 22938 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose reports have been
farnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in s far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is
based solely on the audit reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Financial Statements also include the Subsidiary Group’s share of net loss (and other
comprehensive income) (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. Nil lakhs for the year ended March
31, 2024, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect of one (1) associate of
subsidiary company, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. This unaudited financial
statements/financial information have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this associate of subsidiary company, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to ihe aforesaid associate, is based solely on such financial
statements. In our opinion and according to the information and. explanations given o us by the
Management, these financial statements are not matetial to the Group and associate of subsidiary.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we have
given in the “Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Further, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statement have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of changes in equity and
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules made
thereunder. o

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding company as
on 31 March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company
and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated in
India,, none of the directors of the Group’s companies is disqualified as on 31* March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding company and its subsidiary companies, the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “Annexure C”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the step
down subsidiaries, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid
/ provided by the Subsidiary Company and its step down subsidiaries to their directors in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;
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AV & Associates

h) With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the
other financial information of the subsidiaries and associate of subsidiary, as noted in the
‘Other Matter” paragraph:

i.  The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact the consolidated
financial position.

i.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses. '

iil. There were no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no -
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or foaned or invested (gither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Group and associate of subsidiary to or in any other
person ot entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitios identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group and associate of subsidiary
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Group from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group and
associate of subsidiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guaraniee, security or the

like on behalif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. As stated in Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors
of one of the Subsidiary Company has declared final dividend for the year which is
subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. As
per opinion provided by the auditors of the Subsidiary who have audited the
consolidated financial statements for the even period, the dividend declared by the
said subsidiary company is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to declaration of dividend.
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AVK & Associates
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
i the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N

B s

(C/f'Ashwani Kumar Relan})
Place: New Deihi Partner

Dated: 29-09-2024 M.No:088309

UDIN: 24088309BKCNKHB845

|
:
:
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditors® Report of Capital India Corp Private Limited for the
vear ended 31st March 2024

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: '

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group and associate of subsidiary has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and associate of subsidiary to

o e R S A ST

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a mate

rial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor’s report to th

e related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if

cuch disclosures are inadequate, to modi

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the

Group and associate of subsidiary to cease (o continue as a going concern.

« Pvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements i1y the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with Management of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal contro! that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Management of the Holding Company with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N

(CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)
Piace: New Delhi Partner

Dated: 29-09-2024 M.No:088309

UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure ‘B’ referred to in our Independent_Auditors’ Report to the members of Capital

India Corp Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31st %
March 2024:- |

In terms of paragraph 3(xxi) of CAROQ 2020, in case of companies below, remarks as stated by the ) 1
respective auditors in their CARO report on the standalone financial statements of the respective
companies included in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company ate as under: E

SN Name of the Company CIN/ LLPIN Holding/Subsidiaries/ Paragraph i
0. Associates number in s
the respective l

CARO "1

Reports :

[, | Capital India Corp Private | U65990DI.2022PTC395053 Holding Company Clause3(vii)(a)
Limited 5

2. Capital India Fimance | L74899DL1994PLC 128577 | Subsidiary Company Clause 3(iii)(d) ;
Limited i

3. | Credenc Web Technologies U74999DL.2017PTC319926 | Subsidiary Company Clause 3(xvii)
Private Limited

4. | Yellow Whale Technologies U72200MH2023PTC397782 | Subsidiary Company NIL
Private Limited

e o e o 0 55

5. | Capital India Wealth | U65999D1.2017PTC322881 | Subsidiary Company NIL .

Management Private Limited
— T GIFl oldings  Private | U65990DL2017PTC323832 | Subsidiary Company | NIL
Limited E
.
For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N
(CA Ashwani Kumar Relan) 1
Place; New Delhi Partner
Dated: 29-09-2024 M.No: 088309

UDIN: 24088309BIKCNKH8845
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATYED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CAPITAL INDIA CORP PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED ON 31°" MARCH, 2024

Report on the Infernal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Capital India Cortp Private ;
Limited(“the Group™) and associate of subsidiary as of 31 March,2024 in conjunction with our audit of %
the financial statements of the Group and associate of subsidiary for the year ended on that date. :

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Group’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls |
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group and associate of
subsidiary considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financia! Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAT"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to group’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and etrors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act. i

|

a
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Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on |
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to tho extent .
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial |
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the “
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial contrals over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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AVK & Associates
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting :

A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Group's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Group; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Group; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Group's assets that could have a mnaterial effect on the financial statements.
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[nberent Limitations of Internal Financia! Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
orror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, has an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
gffectively as at 31 March,2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to subsidiary companies and
associate of subsidiary company incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of
the auditors of such companies.

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: (02638N

(CA Ashwani Kumar Relan}
Place: New Delhi Partner

Dated: 29-09-2024 M.No:088309

UDIN: 24088309BKCNKH8845
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Capital India Corp Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024
Amounit in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note As At As At
No. 31stMarch, 2024 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
{1) Financial Asseis
(a} Cashand Cash Equivalents 3a 23,771.11 24,205.95
(b} Banlk balance other than {a) zbove 3b 10,262.04 7.937.86
(c) Receivables 4
(i} Trade Receivables 2,051.42 1,785.49
(il Other Receivables 15.52 34.30
(d) Loans 5 123,937.70 123,621.13
(e} Investments 6 1,832.34 527491
{f) Other Financial assets 7 4,318.52 2,454.83
166,180.65 165,314.56
(2) Non-Financial Assets
(a) Inventories 8 126.03 82.18
{(b) Current Tax Assets (net} 9 62340 1,245.17
{c) Deferred tax Assets (net) 21 1,167.42 1,184.52
(@} Property, Piantand liquipment 10 1,954.25 2,351.8%
{e} Capital workinprogress 11 3017 15.00
(f} intangible assels under developrent 12 1,601.18 3,513.39
(g} Other Intangible Assets 13 4,406.04 150612
(h) Goodwill 144 1,807.59 1,807.59
(i) Rightof use assets 14B 1,332.00 2,551.28
(i) Other non-financial assets 15 2,92147 2,150.76
15,309.56 16,468.51
TOTAL ASSETS 181,498.21 181,783.07
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
{1} Financial Liabilities
{a) Payables 16
(I}Trade Fayables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smazll enterprises 7712 47.61
(i) Tota} outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,462.66 1,480.36
{I1) Other Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(ii} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micra and small enterprises 70.77 -
(b} DebtSecurities 17 8,053.58
{c) Borrowing (other than debt securities) i8 93,752.97 95,789.15
(d) Lease liabilities 41 1,570.28 286743
(e} Subordinated Liabilities 19 34,872.61 36,511.00
(i} Other firancial liabilities 20 20,322.66 17,915.88
152,129.07 152,665.01
{2} Non- Finaucial Liabifities
{a} Provisions 22 1,78853 1,546,595
(b} Other non-financial Yabilities 23 145251 1,160.62
3,241.74 2,707.57
{3) EQUITY
{a) Equity Share Capital 24 506.06 506.06
(b} Other Eguity 25 19,329.18 19,319.53
Equity attributable te the owners of the Company 19,835.24 19,825.59
(c} Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 6,292.86 6,585.30
26,128.10 26,410.89
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 181,498.21 181,783.07

Corporate Information
Material Accounting Policies
Wotes 3 to 50 forms integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

FRN 02638N

A Ashwani Kr. Relan
Partner

M. No. 088309

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29/09/2024

Sumit Rumar Nagvar

[}
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Chairman and Marfaging Director

DIN: 02045194
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Deepak Vaswan
Director

DIN: 07814811




Capital India Corp Private Limited
Conselidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Revenue from operations
i Interest income 20A 20,913.77 17,396.88
i Fees and commnission income 28,574.03 30,284.37
it Income from foreign exchange services 2,973.09 2,029.46
iv Sale of devices 13,026.15 14,026.77
v Dividend [nceme 268 - -
vi Net gain on fair value changes 26C 1,138.48 244.14
vii Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amaortised cost category 1,017.90 339.01
viii Other operating income 26D 970.02 8,502.47
68,613.46 72,823.12
II. OtherIncome 27 764.59 649,38
II. Total Income (I+1I} 69,378.04 73,472.50
1IV. Expenses
i Finance Costs 30 10,460.57 B8,652.19
ii  Fees and commission expense 31,900,06 36,079.58
il !mpairment of financlal instruments 28 301.60 119,37
iv  Costof materials consumed 29 132,21 310.80
v Employee Benefits Expenses 31 16,886.19 22,029.20
vi  Depreciation, amortization and irpairment 32 3,078.22 2,577.09
vii Others expenses 33 9,127.95 9,885.96
Total Expenses 71,886.82 79,654.18
V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional ltems and tax (1lI-1V} (2,508.78) (6,181.69)
VI Exceptional items 1,631.45 103.34
VIl Profit/{Loss) after exceptional items and tax (V-VD) [1,477.32) (6,678.35)
VI Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-V} (1,477.32) (6,078.35)
IX Taxexpense: 34
Current Tax 737.79 752.67
Deferred Tax 22.81 {407.64)
Tax paid for Earlier Year 366.67 -
X Profit/(Loss) after tax (VHi-1X) (2,604.60) (6,423.95)
X1 Other Comprehensive [ncome 35
a) (i) Items that will be veclassified to Profit or Loss (64.60} 44.68
(i1} Income tax relating to Items that be reclassified to Profit or Loss 13.78 (14.44)
b} (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss (4.88) -
{ii} Incorse tax relating to items that will not be reclassified te Prafit or Loss 1.23 -
Total Other Comprehensive income (47.17) 30.24
Xi Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (X+X1) (2,651.77} (6,393.71)
Profit/Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company (1,897.83) {4,698.43}
Non-controliing interests [(706.77) (1,725.52)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year atiributable to:
Owners of the Company {34.37) 22,11
Non-controlling interests {12.80}) 812
‘T'otal Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Qwners of the Company (1,932.20) (4,676.32)
Non-coniroliing interests (719.57) (1,717.40)
XNl Earnings per equity share (Face vaiue of Rs 10 each)
Basic (in Rs.) (5147) (126.94)
Diluted (in Rs.) (51.47) (126.94)

Corporate Information
Material Accounting Policies
Notes 3 to 50 forms integral part of the Consolldated Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Assaciates
Chartered Accountants

ERN 02638N

CA Ashwani Kr, Relan
(Partner)

M. No. 088309

Place: New Delhl
Date: 29/09/2024

Sumit uma&Nﬁ’rvar
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 02045194
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For and.6tf ehdifofihe

eepak Vaswan
Director

DIN: 07814811




Capital India Corp Private Limited

Amoutit in Rupees Lakdi uniess otherwise stated

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Tar the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activitles
Profit/{Loss) Before Tax (2,508.78) [6,181.69)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3,078.22 2,577.09
Consolidated Adjustment 64444 -
Provision for employee benelits - 179.31
Other foreign exchange service Income {7.28) -
Share based payments to employees 1,506,685 4,989.87
Exceptional items - -
Loss on share of asseciates - 960.36
[nterest on Lease liability 174.49 288.61
Frofit on Mutual Fund (403.50) {244.14)
Gain on Lease Termination (58.09) (112.53)
Finance Cost 10,286.08 #,163.58
Interest Incoine (20,913.77) (16,820.18)
Fair Value gain of investments recognised at FVTPL {734.98) -
Fair value Lnterest Income on Investments in Debentures - (576,71)
[Gain)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {20,55) 26,37
{Galn}/Loss on direct assighinent transactions {1,017.90) -
Expected Credit Loss for trade receivables 55.08 {22.28)
Proviston for Contingencies 21042
Interest on income tax refund (58.63) {42.35)
Balance written back (263.56)
Interest on unwinding of financlal assets - (27.44)
Impairment on financlal instruments 30L.60 (119.37)
Operating Profit/{Loss) before Working Capital Changes {9,729.09} (6,761.50)
{increase)/Decrease in financlal assets (770.72) 512,10
(Increase}/Decrease in non financlal assets {1,863,69) (972.40})
{Increase}/Decrease in Recelvable (247.15) {800.51)
{Increase)/Decrease in Inventeries (43.86) 22.99
Increase,/{Decrease} in Payable 82.58 (338.68}
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision 241,58 (558.70)
Increase/f(Decrease) in Current tax assets 621.77 -
[ncrease/ [Decrease) (n financial liabilities 2,406.78 (3,340.18)
Increase/{Decrease) In Lease liabilities (1,257.15) -
Increase/(Decrease) in non-financial liabilitles 291.88 75.26
Cash generated from/(used in) Operations before Tax (10,306.66) (6,686.26)
Current Taxes paid (73779} {752.67)
Yax patd for earlier year £366.67) -
Net Cash Flow from/{used in} Operaiing Activities (11,41%1,12) (7,/438.93)|
B. Cash Flow From Invesilng Activities
Loan (inclunding interest) convertible into Equity shares (316.57) {12,868.02)
Sale/Redemption of [nvestiments 3,442.57 11,320.22
Sale of Property, Plant ad Equipments 397.56 35172
Right of use of Assets 1,219.99 -
Proceed with Capital work in progress {15.17) (14.12)
Proceed with Other Intangible Assets (321.71) (2,430.67)
Interest Received 20,913,77 16,820.18
investment in terin depostts {2.32409) 7,336.72
Net Cash Flow from/{used in) Investing Actlvities 22,990.35 20,516.04
C, Cash Flow From Financlng Activitles
Proceeds/{repayment]) of Bolrowings 7,963.82 19,869.50
Redemption of Debt Securitles (8,053.58) 4,137.68
Subordinated Liabiiitles {1,638.39) (25,153.43}
interest paid (£0,286.08) (8,363.58
Net Cash Flow fromy/{used in) Financing Activities {12,014.23} (9,509.43)
Net Cash Increase / (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents {435.00) 3,567.68
Opering balance of Cash and Cash Eguivalents 24,205.95 20,638.28
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,770.94 24,205.96
Cash and Cash Equivalents Included in the Statement of Cash Flow compzise of the following:
i} Cash on Hand 23.45 28.70
if) Balance with Banks:

- In Current Accounts 23,747.66 24,177.25
Tetal 23,771.11 24,205.95

Notes; The previous year ligures have heen regoruped/reciassified wherever necessary

Corporate Information
Material Accounting Policies

Nates 3 to 50 forms Integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per aur report of even date
For AVH & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN 02638N

CA Ashwanl Ky, Relan
(Partner)

M.No. 089309

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29/09/2024

Deepalt Vaswan
Chairman and Maunaging Director Directer
DiIN;: 02045194 DIN;: 07814811
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Capital India Corp Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1

2.1

Corporate Information

The Company, its subsidiaries and associates {coltectively referred to as “the Group”} are companies pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. The main activities of the group are to carry on the business of investrent company, financing activities, trading in forex, act as money changer
and setup & operate semi-closed prepaid instrument Services.

The Holding Company has been registered as a CIC - "Non-Deposit Taking (ND-8I) with Reserve Bank of India. In june 2022, the Company had applied to
Reserve Bank of India for Core Investment Company (CIC). The Reserve Bank of India, vide its certificate of registration dated 13th November 2023 has
granted its approval to the Company and the Company has been classified as a "Non-Deposit Taking Core Investment Company {CIC-ND-sI)"

Material Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance
The Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} notified under

section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015, as amended from time
to time on accrual basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Group's functional currency and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakh {INR 00,000) and upto 2 decimal places, except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Preparation of consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services. Further, Assets and liabitities are classified as per the normal operating cycle (determined at 12 months) and
other criteria set out in Schedule 11T of the Act as applicable to NBFCs.

Fair value measurement

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderty transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

"The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or Hability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of
the asset or fiability and the leve) of the fair value hierarchy in which they fall.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are ohservahie for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a lability, the Group uses observahle market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
vatue of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Financial and Non- Financial Classification

Division 111 to Schedule i1 requires all items in the balance sheet of a NBFC to he classified as either financial or non financial and to be reflected as such.
Further, para 54 of [nd AS 1 alsa specifies a requirement of presenting financial assets and financial liabilities as line items of the palance sheet separately
frem the other items.




Capital India Corp Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statersents in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions.

These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.

Accounting estimates could change from peried to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in eslimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates, Changes in estimaies are reflected in the financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in
these financial statements are:

- Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

- Valuation of financial instraments

- Provisions and contingencies

- Income tax and deferred tax

further an entity is consolidated as a subsidiary if the company has control over the said entity hased on the management evaluation of investments and
related agreements/deeds and determine that the Group has control over the said entity in terms of Ind AS-110 on Consolidated Financiai Siatements.

Control shall include the right to appoint majority of the directors or te control the management or policy decisions exercisable by a persen or persons
acting individually or in concert, directly ar indirectly, including by virtue of their shareholding or management rights or sharehclders' agreements cr
voting agreements or in any other manner.

2.2 Principles of consolidation
The financial statements of the subsidiary company used in the consolidation is drawn up to the same reporting date as of the group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets,
liabitities, income and expenses. [nter-company balances and transactions and unvealised profits or losses have been fully eliminated.

b) The excess of the cost to the parent of its investments in a subsidiary over the parent's portion of equity at the date on which investment in the
subsidiary is made, is recognised as ‘Goodwill (on consclidation)'. When the cost to the parent of its investment in a subsidiary is less than the parent’s
portion of equity of the subsidiary at the date on which investment in the subsidiary is made, the difference is treated as ‘Capital Reserve (on
consolidationy in the consolidated financial statements.

¢) Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary consists of the ameunt of equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the dates on
which investments in the subsidiary company are made and further improvements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments.

d) On disposal of a subsidiary, the atiributable amount of geedwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss en disposal.

g) The share of prafit / loss of associate companies / firms / LLPs is accounted under the "Equity method’ as per which the share of profit / loss of the
assaciate has been adjusted to the cost of jnvestment. An associate is an enterprise in which the investor has significant influence and which is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint venture.

f) The List of Parent, Subsidiary and Associates which are included in the Consolidation and the Parent Company's holding therein are as under:

The Parent Company considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement is as under:

Capital India Corp Private Limited India

The Subsidiary Companies considered in the Consolidated Financial Statement is as under:

: : : 3.2024 : 1
Capital India Finance Limited India 73.04% 73.04%
Credenc Weh Technologies Pyt Ltd india 77.11% 66.70%
Capital [ndia Wealth Management Pvt Ltd. India 100.00% 1.00.00%
CIFL Holdings Pvt Ltd. India 100.00% 100.00%
Yellow Whale Technelogies Pvt Led India 78.00% 78.00%




Capital India Corp Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.3

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.6.1

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from operations

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can he reliably measured and
there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using effective interest method. The effeciive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying ameunt of the financial asset.When calculating the effective interest rate, the company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses,

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulared depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criterja are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with
these will flow to the company and the cast of the item can be measured reliably.

All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipments and intangibie assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost
of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Property, Plant and Equipment not ready for the intended use an the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

Gains or losses arising from derecogaition of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on written down value niethod basis using the ratic arrived as per the useful Jife prescribed
under Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of Properly, Plant and Equipment purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such asset is
ready to use.

The residual value, useful live and method of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted

prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised, anly where it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will accrue to the enterprise and the
cost can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets not ready for the intended nse on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as intangible assets under development.

Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite, Finite-life intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
period of their expected useful lives. Intangible assets are amortized over a period of six years on straight line basis as per the useful life prescribed
under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, Intangible assets acquired / purchased during the year are amortised on a pro-rata basis from the date on
which such assets are ready to use.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised. Such intangible assets are tested for impairment.

The residual value, useful live and method of amortization of intangible asseis are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition
The Group recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets and Habilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition.

Transaction costs that are divectly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through
profit or loss are added to or deducted from the fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities on initial recoged {:}

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fairf@)&%ﬂ'fm
immediately in profit or loss.

it or loss are recognised

Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at frade date.
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2.6.3

2.6.4

2.7

Subseguent measurement

Non-derivative financial instraments

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash fows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subseguently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a husiness model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Holding Company has made an irrevocable election: for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes
in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model. For such equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair valued through profit or loss. Fair value changes
are regognised as other income in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial Jiabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost in the separate financial statements.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of equily instruments are recognised as a deduction from equity instroment net of any tax effects.

Derecognition

The Holding company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.A financial liability is derecognized when obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Off-setting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the company currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amount and intends either to cettle an a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sel an assef or paid to transfes a liability in: an ordezly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The Fair value measurement assunes that the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the YHability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- Ir. the absence of a principal marlet, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A fair value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefit by using the asset in its
nighest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Hotding company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. The fair
value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observabie or uncbservable and consists of
the following three Jevels:

Level 1~ inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active marlets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — inputs are other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability either directly {ie. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived prices)

Level 3 — inputs are not based on observable market data {unchservable inputs) Fair vatues are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model
based on assumption that are neither supported by prices from ohservable current market transactions in the same instrument ner are they based on
available market data.
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2.9.1

2.9.2

Inconte tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current Tax

Current tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or girectly in equity, respectively.

Current tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to he paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to reatize the asset and setile the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income aor directly in equity, in
which case, the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from initial
recognition of goodwill; or initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of transaction,
affects neither acceunting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax assets are recogrised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses and carry forward of unused tax credits to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those temporary differences, losses and tax credit can be utilized, except
when deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
husiness combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxahle profitor loss,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, hased on the tax rales and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liabitity simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced te the extent that it is no longer prebable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financtal assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equat to the 12-month ECL, unless there has heen a significant increase in
credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

The impairment loss aliowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income / expense in the statement of profit and loss.
Non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. if any indication exists the company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the assel does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverahle amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marlket
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transaction

ggﬁgu&to account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
vatuation model is used. w{},«

3 B2
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Lease
Company as lessee

The Group lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Office building. The Company assesses whether 2 contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To agsess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (i} the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease Hability for all lease
arrangements in which it is alessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (sheri-term leases) and low value leases, For these short-term
and low-value leases, the Group recognizes the jease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment josses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underiying
asset,

"The lease Liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the jease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classilied as financing cash fiows.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs that company has incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a supstantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
horrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits for salary and wages including accumulated leave that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which employees render the related service are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the expected cost of absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. As per Group's policy, no leave is expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months from the reporting date.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to
the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service.

The Group aperates one defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity plan, The costs of providing benefits under the plan are determined on the
basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out using the projected unit credit method made at the end of each reporting
date. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprise of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability {asset) and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest an the net
defined benefit liability / (asset)}Re-measurement are vecognised in other comprehensive income and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in a
subsequent period.

Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits will he required to setile the ebligation and 2 reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current marlket assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific te the liability When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.

Provisions are not discounted to their present vajue and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
Thesa estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the cceurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settie the ebligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannat

be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent Hability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only be occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company. The company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Foreign Currency
Ipitial recognition
Poreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the

functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are relranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date, Non-monetary items, which are measured in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange difference
All exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash fow statement comprise cash at bank (including demand deposits) and in hand and short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts.Bank overdraft is shown within cash and cash equivalents.

Earnings per share

Basic earsings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
nurber of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of smaterials is determined on weighted average basis, Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price less estimated cost necessary to male the sale.

Segment Reporting
An operating segment is component of the Group that engages in the business activity from which the Group earns revenues and incurs expenses, for

which discrete financial information is available and whaose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding
shout resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performarnce. The company’s chief operating decision maker is the Managing Director.

Assets and Habilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other assets and liabilities
are disclosed as un-allocable.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. All other expenses which are not atiributable or
allocable fo segments have heen disclosed as un-allocable expenses.

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing ang presenting the financial statements of
the company as a whoie.
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Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of the transactions of non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing and financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Shest date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting peried, the impact of such
events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet: date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”") notifies new standard or amendrents to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable
from April 1st, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items
produced while the Group is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or
loss. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the 10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impactin its financial statements.
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Note 3a- Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Balances with Banks 23,747.66 24,177.25
Less: Book Overdraft - -
Net Balance with Banks (A) 23,747.66 24,177.25
Cash on hand {B} 23.45 28.70
Total (A+B) 23,771.141 24,205.95
Note 3b- Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Term Deposits with maturity mere than 3 months 10,256.44 7,933.77
Earmarked halance with bank (refer note 2} 2.77 1.52
Dividend account balance 2.83 2.67
Total 10,262.04 '7,937.96
Note 4- Receivables
Asat As at
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
(i) Trade receivables
i} Secured considered good - -
i) Unsecured considered good 2,051.42 1,785.49
iii) Doubtful 16.08 7.77
Subtotal (i+ii+iii) 2,067.50 1,793.26
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (16.08) (7.77)
Net Receivables (a) 2,051.42 1,785.49
(ii) Other receivables - -
i) Secured considered good - -
ii] Unsecured considered good 15.52 34.30
iii) Doubtful - -
Subtotal (i+ii+iii) 15.52 34.30
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - -
Net Receivables (b} 15.52 34.30
Total {a)+{b) 2,045.25 1,803.35




67'S8L'T

0L'6LFT

S86LT

Lol

LLL

6%'98LT

LLL

056

PT8YT

58’162

$SO[ J1pOID Pajoadxa 10§ SAIURMOT[Y 155977

poaredwr HPaLd ~ SI[GEATINDL 2PEAL pamdsig
¥{S1I J1Pa1d Ul aseaoul JUBIYIUSTS

aABY YoM — SS[QBATSDAL APBLL paandsiqg
PO poIapISU0D —SI[GEAIIIRI IPBL], pandsig

pazredw 3IpaLy — SB](RAIRIAT 3PBLL, pandsipuf

HSL13IPEI0 UL SSEIOUL JUBDYIUSIS
SARY UDIYM ~ SI[QBAIIAI apeL], paIndsipuy)

pO0S PaIapISUd -$9[qBAIRIaL SPBLL PIINASIPU]

[E10L

SIeaj ¢
Wey3 20N

SIESK £-7

1eax Z-1

Je3A T -
STIUO 9

SO 9
Le) S$a

sanp pafquy

sIBnoILIRd

£Z0Z UDIBIN ISTE 1B SE SUIPURISINQ

Z¥'IS0°C

¥ES

81

80°97)

8091

T¥1S0C

T8091)

8091

tES

78T

Y0

YT¥F0T

ssof 1padd pajradxs 103 SOOUEMO]Y SS9

paaredust o — S3[GRAIEdR1 apeL] PIIndsi(
¥SLI PaI) UT aSEaLOU JUBIYTUSLS

SARY OTUM — S3](RAIDAL IPELL pandsig
PO0S PaIapISUOD ~S3[qRAIR031 SpRL], paindsia

poaredul HpaI2 — s2|(eatsdal opel psmdsipull

SLI3Pald Ul 3$BAIDUL JUBIYIUBIS
SARY UOTYM — SI[qBAISIaL 9pEL], pegndsipiy)

POOS PAIaPISLOD -Sa(RAIedal APEL], PIIndsipun

{E10.L

SIE3A £
Ueyl 310}

sIEaj £-7

IB3A Z-T

JeaAT -
S0 9

SYIUCIE 9
et $597%

senp payiqua

SIB[NOTIIE]

$7Z0Z UDIBN ISTE IE SE SUIPUEISHO

ISy 8[(EAT909Y oPELL

PoIEIS 9SLMIBYI0 SSATUN e seadny Ul IUNOULY

$707 ‘L€ YoIBI{ PIPUS I3k a1f} 10) SJUIWIIEIS [ERUBUL] PIEPI{OSU0D 01 SIION

permyry a1earld dio) erpuy [eatded




Capital India Corp Private Limited
Neotes 1o Censolidated Financial Staternents for the year ended March 31,2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Nate 3- Loans
{Carried at Amortised Cost, except othenvise stated}

Particulars

Asat
31st March 2024

As-z;‘
31st March 2023

[A) Advances - at amortised cost

Vendor financing (Secwred) 69.65 15.05
Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance 0.17 0,06
Subtotal (1} 69.48 1499
(D) Term Loans in India - at amortised cast
Secured 106,739.44 108,269.08
Unseculed 21,378,64 20,230.45
Total Gross 128,118.08 128,500
Less: Impairment loss atiowance 2,543.71 Z,242.04
Subtetal (2] 125,574 126,257
(C) (I} Loans and Advances In Imdla
Public Sectar -
{Others 128,182.73 128,515
Gross 128,187.73 128,515
Less: Impairment loss allowance 2,543.71 2,242
Net 125,644.02 126,272
(11} Loaus and advances Qutside india {Net] - -
Net 125,644.02 126,272
Less: Unamortised processing fee lncome 74341 668.55
Less; Collection from Customers 962,91 1,582.78
Subtatal (3} 1,706,32 2,651.33
Total Net Loan [1+2+3) 123,937.70 123,621.13
Bifusreation of Secured loans & advances
Partlculars Asat As at!
31sthiarch 2024 31st March 2023
Secured by book debt 3.417.63 520237
Secured by tangible asset 103,171.62 102,852.17
{ Covered by bank or government guarantee 21564 229.57
\T_Utal 106,609.09 108,284.11
Noie-6 Inveshments
Particulars Asat As ﬂ—tl
: 315t March 2024 March 31,2023
Recorded at amartised cost
Investment {n eauity instrunients 984.56 -
Investment in associates 847.78 847.78
Becorded at Fair value Hirough P&L
Ln India
Investment in Liquid mutuai fund units - 442713
3 1,832.34 5,274.91
Particalars Asa Asat
31stMarch 2024 March 31,2023
{nvestment outside India - -
Investment in [ndia 1,832.34 5,27491
1,832.34 527491
Note:
Based on assessmient, no impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 31st Mavch 2024 and 3 st March 2023.
Detall for fnvestment in Mutual Funds.
A As at!
5 at
senl: March 31, 2023
Particulars 31t March 2024 ’
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liguid Fund- Growth Divect {31st March 23 -3,46,065 Units} - 1,256.50
Nippon India Liquid Fund {31st March 23 - 29,891 Units} - 1,646,056
SB{ Premier Liquid Fund- Divect {31st March 23 - 43,271 Units} - 1,624 57

TOTAL

4,427.13
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Note 7- Other Financiaj Assets
{Carried al Amortised Cost, except otherwise stated)

Particulars Asal As at
3istblarch 2024 31st March 2023
Accrued Iicome 3471 5381
hiterest accured on Fixed Deposit 0.75 0.20
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 332.80 188,07
Interest on loan paid in advance - 48.33
Security deposits #84.16 911.21
Advaice Pald to Staff and vendors 7.32 9.61
Deferred consideration on directassignments 1,492.86 51839
Other advances 2338 12.83
Advance to vendors 001 -
Ex. Gratia receivable 0.68 0.68
Fixed Deposit more than 12 mantiis (reflor note iand i) 37371 30.55
Rereivables from service providers 940,83 303.22
Cash ¢ollateral/margin on borrawing 772 1159
Amount recoverable from agents (DBO's) 59.27 190.66
Unbiiled Revenue 16031 175.28
Balance with G5T Authorities - 036
Amount Recoverable - 0.04
Total 4,318.52 2,454.83
Note-8 -Inventaries —_
. Agai Asal
Partieulars 315t Maycli 2024 315t March 2023
Stock-in-trade of goods acquired for trading 128.61 8476
Less: Provisions for ubselete inventory [2.58} (258)
Total Inventories 126.03 82,18
{I) The cost of invenlories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continulng operations was Rs, 122.09 Lakhs (March 2023: ks, 310.50 Lakhs).
{ii) The cost of inventoties recognised includes Rs. 2,58 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 2.58 Lalkhs) in respect of write downs / (write-up) of inventory to net realisable vatue. This was recognised asan
expense during the year cnded 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 in the statement of profit and loss.
Note 9- Current iax assets (net)
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Income tax refand due 623.40 1,245.17
623,40 1,245.17

Ttotal
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Capital Iydia Corp Private Limited

Notes te Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in Rupees Lakh unless othervise stated

Capital -worl in progress ageing schedule as at 31st March,2024

Particulars Less than 1- 2 Year| 2-3 Year More than Total
1 Year 3 Years
Projects in propress 3017 - - - 3617
3017 - - 30.17
Capital ~worlt in progress ageing schedule as at 31st March,2023
Particulars Less thian 1-2 Year 2-3 Year Mu-re than ’I‘ntg
1 Year 3 Years
DProjects in progress 15,08 - - - 15.00
15.00 - - - 15.00
Notes:
{i} There are no projects whose completion is sverdue or has exceeded its cost compared to Its oripinal plan.
Mote-12 -Intangible assets under development
Asat As
tleulars
Partleiar March a1, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance as at the bepinning of the year 3,513.3% 1,137.99
Additions [or the year 1,655.84 321250
Capitalised during the year (4,168.05} 1837.50)
Balance as at the end of the year 1,001.18 3,513.39
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024 —
Particulars Liess than 1- Z Year 2-3 Year More than Total
1Year 3 Years
Neo Banking 54.4% - - 54.49
Cthers 39276 528.59 25,34 - 246,69
44725 528.59 25.34 - 1,001.18
Intangible assets under development agelng schedule as at 315t March, 2023
Pactieulars Less than $-2 Year, 2-3 Year Maoze than Total
1 Year! 3 Years
Neo Banking 2,418.76 A66.02 - - 288478
Others 517.72 110,89 - - 628.61
2,936.48 576,91 - - 3,513.39
Notes:
(1) Mo Projecls has been suspended during the year or has exceeded its cost compared to is eriginal plan.
(i) Ageing hias bean reckoned from the project start date.
(jil} There are no projects which are elther overdue or have exceeded their cost compared Lo their original pian as at 3 1st March 2024 and 31st March 2023,
{iv) There are no projects where activity has been suspended.
Note 13- Other Intangible Assets
Particulars Computer Sofware Intellectual Pror! erty| Dl.her Totat
Rtights Intangible
Gross Carrying Value
AsatMarch31,2022 2,028,21 356 44,22 2,075.99
Additions 859,09 - - 855,09
Disposals - - - -
As atMarch 31, 2023 2,887.30 3.50 44,22 2,935.08
Additions 4,185.99 - 10,00 4,195.99
Disposals - 012 0.12
As at March 31, 2024 7,073.29 344 54,22 7,130.85
Accumulated Depreciation -
As at Marchs 31, 2022 607,99 - 33.88 64187
Charge for the year 720.86 0.17 6.07 727.10
Disposais - - -
AsatMarch 31, 2023 %,328.84 0.17 39.96 1,368.96
Charge for the year 1,353.79 C.16 2,00 1,355.95
Disposals - 0.01 001
As at March 31,2024 2,682.63 0.33 41.96 2,724.91
Net Carrying Amount -
AsatMarch 31, 2023 1,558406 3.39 426 1,566.12
As at March 31, 2024 4,390,66 311 12.26 4,406.04
Note-14A -Goodwill "
Particulars Asat Asat
315t March 2024 31stMarch 2023
At cost, beginning of the year 1,807.59 552.26
Additions - 1,255.33
Total 1,807.5% 1,807.59
Note:

Gaodwill arises during the year Is Nit {Previous year: due to acquisition of NYE [nvestech Private Li

Limited) by the subsidiary Capital India Flnance Limited.




Capital India Corp Private Limited
Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
Amount in Rupeas Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note-14B -Right of use assels

. Asat Asat
Particulars 315l March 2024 31st March 2023
Premises

At cost, beginning of the year 4,931.64 5,039.92
Additions 237.37 28340
Deletion (616.34) {391.68)]
Gross Block 4,552.68 4,931.64
Accamulated amprtization :

At beginning of the year 2,379.66 1,689.54
Amorlization 841.0% 942,29
Deletion - (252,17}
Total amortization 3,220,68 2,379.66
Net carrying sipount 1,332.00 2,551.98
Note:

(i) There is no revaluation in Right of use assets during the year ended 31st March 2024 and 3 1st March 2023,
(1§} Refer Hote No. 41 for detail on Leases.

Note-15 -Other non-financial assets

Particulars Asat As af]
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Prepaid Expenses 685.41 598.29
Capital advances 2677 7.99
Balance with Statutory authorities 1,27197 97125
Others 12,74 2,13
Subtotal (A} : 1,996.89 1,579.67
Advance Paid to Suppllers 947.60 564,11
Less; Provision for doubtlul advances {23.02) {23.02);
Subtotal (B) 924,58 571.09
Tatal 2,921.47 2,150.76
Note-16-Payables
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2024 41st March 2023
Trade payables
{i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises 7712 47.61%
it tota}.z)uts‘tandlng dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 1462.66 146036
sinail enlerprises
Other payahles
{i} total outsianding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(i1} total outstanding dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and 7077 B
small enterprises '
1,610.55 1,527.97

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006

The information as required (o be disciosed under MSME development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties
liave been identified on the basis of information avallable with the Group. The following table sets forth, for the year indicated, the
amount of principal & Interest outstanding.

Particulars Asat3istMarch 2024 | AsatMarch 31, 2023
{1) Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpatd to MSME 77.12 4761
suppliers

(if) Interest due on unpald principal amount to MSME supplters as on 31sY : .
March 2024

(i} The amount of interest paid in terms of sec 16 of MSMED, Z006 along
with the amounts of the payment mads to the MSME suppliers beyond the - -
appointmed day
fili) The amount of interest due and payable for the year {without adding
the interest under MSME Development Act)

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
(v) The amount of Interest due and payable to be disallowed urder income

Tax Act, 1961
Talance of MSME parties at the end of the year 7712 47.61

No interest has been paid/is payable by the Group during/lor the year to these ‘Suppliers’, The above information takes into
account only those suppliers who have subpnilted thelr reglsiration datatls or has responded to the inauiries made by the Group
for this purpose., This has been relied upon by the Auditors.




Capital India Corp Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Trade Payables Aging
Outstanding as at 31st March,2024
. Unbilled Less than . | More than
Particulars dues 1 Year 1-2 year | 2-3 Year 3 Years Total
MSME - 0.25 76.87 - 7712
Other 682.54 351.66 427.63 0.84 - 1,462.66
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
682.54 351.91 | 504.50 .84 - 1,539.78
Outstanding as at 31st March,2023
. Unbilled Less than More than
Particulars dues 1 Year 1-2 year | 2-3 Year 3 Vears Total
MSME - 47.61 - - - 47.61
Other 609.13 870.62 0.61 - - 1,480.36
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
609.13 - - 1,527.97




Capital India Corp Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amount i Rupees Lakk unfess otherwise stated

Nate-17 -Debt Securitics

Particilars

Asat
Mazrch 31, 2024

As atl
March 31,2023

At Amortised Cost

Secured

Non convertibie debentures

(Nil for 31st March 2024 and 750 Debentures @ Ts 10 Lakh each for 31st March
2023

Unsecured

Interest accrued but not due on debt securities

7,500.00

553.58

Total

8,053.58

Delts in India
Debts outside india

8,053.58

Total

8,053.58

151N No.

Date of Redemption

As at March 31,2023

INE345H07621

30/ul/2023

As at March 31,2024

2,500,00

INE345H07013

24/ )un /2023

5,000.00

Total

7,500.00

Terus of repavment:

Payticulars

Interest Range

Tenure

]

Non convertible debentures - Secured as at 31st March 2024

Non convertible debentures - Secured as at 31st March 2023

10.00% - 18.05%

Repayable on respective redemption due date.

) Security details

- Non convertible debentures is secured against pari passu charge on elipible receivables to the extent of 1.25 time:

Note 18- Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) {at amartised cost)

5 of the gbligations.

Particulars Asat Asat
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Secured
(a} Term loans
(i} from Banks 59,981.75 60,770.70
(ii) from Financial Institutions 11,902.42 10,976.26
{iii} fromn Other Parties 14,966.34 9,794.71
{b) Vehicle loans from Banks 143.48 46.90
() Working Capital Loan 2,411.60 -
i (d} Other loans - Bank Overdraft /Cash credit Utilised - 1,119.80
Total (A) 09,405.59 82,711.37
Unsecured
lster Corporate Borrowing 2,700.00 3,100,008
Borrowing from Related Parties* 1,653.50 33.50
Borrowing from other than Related Farties** 1,115.95 1,115.95
Lean from Director 2801 16,00
Compulsery Convertible Debetnures-Related Party - -
Total (B) 5397406 4,265.45
1} Borrowings in India 94,803.05 06,976.82
i) Borrewings cutside lndia - -
Total () 94,803.05% 86,976,082
Less: Unamortised Borrowings costs 1,157.99 1,291,897
'de: lnterest accrued but not due on borrowings 10791 144.20
Net Borrowings 63,752.97 85,789,15

Additional information:

{i) There are ne borrowings measured at Fair value through other comprehensive incamne ang FVTPL.

(i) Security details

- Term loan from banks, financial institutions and others Is secured against part passu charge on standard

collateral and Corporate Guarantee given by Subsidiary Company.

asset portfolio of boak debts & cash

- Working Capital loan is secured by way of pari passu charge on Forex Cash and Receivables related to Forex segment.

. Term loan from Financial Institutions is secured against part passt charge on standard asset portfolio of book debts. In case of subsidiary of
subsidiary Capital India Home loans Limited, Bank Guarantee is given by Subsidiary Company.

_Vehicle loans is secured by way of hypothecation on vehicles.

. Bank Overdralt is secured against Fixed Deposits,
. Cash credit facility Is secured against Lean book.

Terms of repayment:
Secured Borrowings

Maturity profile and rate of interest of term leans from Banks & Other Payties for loaps availed by, subsidiary company Capital India Finance Limited

Residual Maturities As at March 31, 2024 T
Rate of Interest
Up to one year 1-3 years 3 years & above Total
{AnT 2024 to Mar 2025 [Apr 2025 ko Mar 2027) {Apr 2027 onwardg)
9.00% to 10.00% 1,000.00 375.00 - 1,375.00
1001% to 11.08% 16,837.28 25,329.98 9,512.20 §1,679.46
11.61% to 12.00% 7,279.33 9,755.02 484,30 17,518.65
12.01% to 13.00% 3,190.65 538,51 - 3,729.16
More than 13.00% 645.81 - - 645.81
Total 28,953.07 35,998.51 9,996.50 74,948.09
Residual Maturities As at March 31, 2023
Rate of Interest
Up to one year 1-3 years 3 years & above Total
(Apr 2023 to Mar 2024) {Apr 2024 to Mar 2026) {Apr 2026 onwards)

9,00% to 10.00% 4,846.35 9,370.41 4,750.91 18,967.67
10.01% to 11.00% 12,17446 18,445.29 5,672.63 36,292.38
11.05% to 12.00% 3,750.1% 3,168.04 363.64 7,281.87
£2.010% to 13.00% 3,085.65 3,297.68 - £,393.33
More than 13.00% 935.37 £94.79 - 1,630.16
Total 24,802,02 34,976.21 10,787,18 70,565.41




Capital India Corp Private Limited
Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amotnt in Rupees Lakh uniess otherwise stated

Maturity profile and rate of interest of tetp loans from Financial Institutions for ioans availed by subsidlary company € apital India Finance Limited

Residual Matarities As at Masch 31, 2024

tate of Ipterest

Up to ene year 1-3 years 3 years & above Total
(Apr 2024 to Mar 2025} | (Apr 2025 Lo Mar 2027) (Apr 2027 onwards) ola
8.00% to 9.00% 796,58 2,124.00 5,381.92 8,302.42
10.01% to 11.00% 2,880.00 720,00 - 3,660,00
Total 3,676.50 2,844.00 5,381.92 11,902.42
Residual Maturities As at March 31,2023
Rate of Interest
Up to ane year 1-3 years 3 years & above
(Apr 2023 ta Mar 2024) {Apr 2024 to Mar 2026) [Apr 2026 onwards) Total
8.00% to 9.00% 848,40 1,550.16 2,577.78 197626
9.01% ta 10.00% 2,500.00 3,500,00 - 6,000.00
| I'otal 3,348.40 5,050.16 2,577.70 10,976.26
Maturity profile apd rate of interest of Vehicle Loans for loans gvailed by subsidjary conpany Capital Indja Finance Limited
Residual Maturities As at March 31,2024
Rate of Interast
Up to one year 1-3 years 3 years & above
[Apr 2024 to Mar 2025} {Apr 2025 to Mar 2027} [Apr Z027 onwards) Total
8.00% to 9.00% 3511 60.60 47.77 143.48
I'otal 35,11 60.60 47.77 14348
Residual Maturities As at March 31, 2023
Rate of Interest
Up to one year 1-3 years 3 years & above
[Apr 2023 to Mar 2024) [Apr 2024 to Mar 2026) {Apr 2026 onwards} Total
7.00% to 8.50% 18.34 1589 - 26,23
8.01% to 9.00% 2367 - 23.67
| Total 34,01 15.89 - 49.90

Unsecured Borrowings:
*Borrowed Rs. $33,50 lakh @ Interest 12% , Repayable in 4 Years
*Borrawed Rs. 1,020.00 lakh @ Interest 12% , Repayable in 1 Year

*+Horrawed 4015.95 @ Interest 12.5% , Repayable in 1 year

(iil} There are no borrowing guaranteed by directors, promaoters, key managerial personnrel (KMPs) as at 31st March, 2024 (31st March, 2023: Nii).

{1v) Additionally the Group has not defaulted in repayment of principal and interest during the year 31st March, 2024 (31st Mareh, 2023: Nifl.

{v} Borrowing obtained en the basis of Security of cuxrent asseis

Borrowings from banks or financials Institutions are secured by way of pari passu lloating charge over the eligible receivables, Further, the companies within group have filed
quarterly/ monthly statement of securities cover with security Trustee and banks reconciling with books of accounts as required.

{vi) End use of borrowings
‘e Companies within group have utilised the horrowed funds for purposes for which it was availed.

{vii) Utilisation of harrowed funds and share premivm

No funds have been received by the Companies within geoup from any person{s) or entityfis), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Companies within group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend to or investin other persens o entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on beha

{vii} Other

if of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet ta be registered with Registrar of Compantes beyond the statutory peried for borrowings.

Note 19 - Subordinated Liability (at FYTPL)

Particulars Asat Asat
Jist March, 2024 31st March, 2023
{Unsecured)
0.01% Unlisted unsecured redeemable optionally fully convertible debentures 16,425.76 36,511.00
Add:- Remeasurement of financial liabilities 18,446.85 -
"fotal 34,872.61 36,511,00
Terms / rights attached to 0.01% Unlisted unsecured redeemable optionally fully converttble debentares
a1 shall be optionally fully convertible in natire
b) issued for maximum tenure of 10 years from the date of allotment
Note 20- Other Financial Liabilities -
Particulars As at Asat
31ist March, 2024 31stMarch, 2023
Lreditors for expenses 1.23 0.50
Interest Payable 422,65 23512
Interest accrued but not due on horrowings 17.05 37,99
Interest accried but not due on debt securites - -
Advances received from customer 1,050.32 717.67
Direct business outlets (RO} batances 11,285.25 11,659.95
Security Deposit 2.75 2.75
Salary payable 20.55 -
Capex payable 0.44 3.70
Dividend payable - -
Unclaimed dividend 2.80 2.65
Payable to etnployees 42,67 75.58
Book overdraft 2,796.79 1,405.74
Other Payable 4,680.27 3,774.23
Total 20,322.66 17,915.88




Capital India Corp Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 21 - Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (Net)

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Asset/{Liahilities] Net
Deferred Tax Asset

Provision for Expected Credit Loss 695.93 650.01
Provision for employee benefits 162.93 133.01
Unamortised processing fee 187.11 168.27
Depreciation 341.44 328.19
Carry forward losses - 290.54
Amortization adjustment on Lease deposits 350.53 5.54
Lease Liahility 60.67 69.70
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Interest adjustments on Lease deposits {15.86} (9.45)
Deferred consideration on direct assignments - -
Unamortised borrowing cost (291.43) (325.14)
Deferred consideration on direct assighments (375.74} (130.48)
Unrealised gain on MF - (2.18)
Lease modification (8.54) (8.54)
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) Net 1,107.42 1,173.46
Movement in Net deferred tax Asset during the year 0 11.06
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) Net 1,107.42 1,184.52
Note-22 -Provisions

Asat Asat

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (refer note 38) 409.85 265.36
Provision for compensated absence (refer note 38) 227.99 219.25
Provision for contingency 379.59 208.29
Provision for performance bonus 764.00 846.54
impairment loss allowance on Sanctioned but undisbursed & Guarantee 7.50 7.50
Taotal 1,788.93 1,546.95
Note 23- Other Non-financial liabilities
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision 6.91 87248
Statutory dues payable 1,104.46 285.74
Advance received from customer 341.14 240
Total 1,452.51 1,160.62




Capital India Corp Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Amount i Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Note 24- Equity Share Capital

particulars As at Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 ‘
Anthorised Equity Shave Capital |
50,60,606 (Asat 31.3.2024: 50,60,606) Equily Shares of Rs. 12 each 506.06 50606
506.06 506.06
1ssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Equity Shave Capital
50,60,606 (As at 31.3.20724: 50,60,606) Equity Shares of iis, 10 each 50646 506.00
Total 506.06 506.06
(4} Reconciliation of the Equity shares
Asat Asat “
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. Amonnt Na, Amount
At the beginning of the period 5,060,606 506.06 5,060,606 50606
Add: Issued during the periad - - - -
Add: [ssued or acceunt of conversion of convertibie
preference shares ) ) . ”
J.ess: Bought-back during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,060,606 506,06 5,060,606 506.06
{b) Name of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:
particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
i No. 9% holding No. oh hokding
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each Fully paid
Sumit Kumar Narvar 2,404,800 47.52% 2,404,800 47.520%
Poonam Narvar 2,254,500 44.55% 2,254,500 44.550%
" 4,659,300 92.07% 4,659,300 92.07%
(&) Promaeter’s Equity Shareholding
Disclasure of shareholding of Promoters;
Pronioker nanme As at 315t March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 % Change during
th r 2023-24
No. of shares o4 of total shares N¢. of shares % of total shares e year 2023
Sumit Kumar Narvar 2,404,800 47.52% 2,404,800 47.52%
Peonam Narvar 2,254,500 44.55% 2,254,500 44.55%
Keshay Porwal 100,200 1.99% 100,200 1.68%
Trident Buildtech Private Limited 250,500 4.95% 250,500 £95%
Deepak Vaswan 50,606 1.00% 50,606 1.00%
Tatal 5,060,606 100.00% 5,460,606 100,00% -

[e) Terms /rights attached to equity shares

As on 3ist March, 2024, holding company has only one class of equity shares aving par value of INR 10 per share, Fach Holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of holding company, the holders of equity shares will be eptitled to recieve remaining assets of the holding company after distribution of all the
preferential amounts. ‘The distribution wili be in the proportion to the number of eguity shares held by the shareholders.

Note 25- Other Equity

Particulars As at As ;‘
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Statutory Reserve under Section 45-1C of the RBI Act, 18.39 }
1934 and under Section 29-C of NHBA Act, 1987 '
Securities premium - -
Retained earnings {4,142.54) (3,099.67)
Other comprehensive income {12.26) 22,11
Capital Reserve 23,445.58 22,397.08
Etal 19,329.18 19,319,563

The description, nature and purpose of each reserve within equity are as follaws:
i) Statutory Rescrve under Section 45-EC of the RBI Act, 1934 and under Seckion 29-C of NJBA Act, 1987:

The Group created a reserve pursuant to section 45 IC the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 and section 29 C of NHBA Act, 1987 by transferring amount netiess than twenty per
cent of iis net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend is dectared.

ii) Securities premium:

The amount received in excess of face value af the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Account, in case of equity-settled share based payment transactions, the

difference between fair value on grant date and neminal value of share is accounted as securities premium account. The account is utifised irs accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2013.

ili} Retained earnings:
Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Group and are available for distributien to sharehoiders.

iv) Other
The Group Recognises change on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefit Hability (asset) as part of other comprehensive income.
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Note 26A- Interest Income

; . For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on Loan 19,445.93 16,221.13
Interest income on vendor financing 12.24 73.93
Interest income on Investment in Debentures - 576.71
Interest on deposits with Banks 900.17 52532
Other interest incoine 35544 -
Total 20,913.77 17,396.88
Note 268~ Dividend Income

_— . For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
On Financial Assets Classified at Fair Vatue through OCE - -

On Financial Assets Classified at Fair Value through profit and loss - -
Total - -
Note 26C- Net gain/ {loss) ou fair value change
Particulars For the year For the year
2023-24 2022-23
Mutual fund units 403.50 244,14
Fair Value gain/ (loss) of investments recognised at FVTPL (10.05) -
Fair Value gain/ {loss) of liabilities recognised at FVTPL 745,04 -
Total (A) 1,138.48 24414
Fair Value Changes:

-Realised 403.50 23546

-nrealised 734.98 8.68
Total (B) 1,138.48 244.14
Note 26D- Other Operating Income

. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Royalty Income 853.34 647.55
Profit on Sale of Investment - 7,403.42
Sale of Product 106.26 451.17
Qthers 1043 0.33
Total 970.02 8,502.47
Note 27- Other Income

. For the year For the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Miscellaneous income 85.74 61.07
Liabilities written back 263.56 -
Profit & loss on sale of fixed asset 19.89 -
Profit on sale of [ntangible Assets 0.66 -
Gain on termination of lease 58.09 112.53
Interest on income tax refund 58.63 4235
Other business support [acome 5.54 77.47
Other foreign exchange service Income 7.28 25.46
Interest on Bank Deposit 14.50 14.54
Interest income on lease deposit 6.70 6.29
Reversal of ESOP Expense - -
Reversal of leave encashment expense 5.19 -
Profit on sale of equity shares 0.11 -
Interest on inter corporate loans 238.69 309.67
Total 764.59 649.38

B
oot

s —
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Note-28 -impairment losses on financial instruments

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

On Loans{Cn financial instruments measured at amortised cost) 301.60 116.37
Total 301.60 119.37
Note-29 -Cost of materials consumed
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening stock 84.76 130.38
Add: Purchases 176.07 265.17
260.83 395,55
Less: closing stock 128.61 84.76
Cost of materials consumed 132.21 310.890
Note 30- Finance costs
- ; For the year Yor the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Interest on borrowings {amortised cost) 10,012.81 7,234.02
[nterest on debt securities 208.96 851.39
Interest on lease liability 174.45 288.61
Other Finance Expense 6432 278.17
Total 10,460.57 8,652.19

Note 31- Employee Benefit Expenses

For the year

For the year

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Salaries, wages and bonus 14,252.61 13,920.01
Contribution to provident and cther funds 761.44 698.20
Share based payments to employees 1,506.85 7,074.39
Staff welfare expenses 365.30 336.60
Total 1.6,886.19 22,029.20
Note 32- Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Particulars For the year For the year
2023-24 2022-23
Depreciation of property, plant and equipments 881.26 907.70
Depreciation of Right to Use Assets 841.01 942.29
Amortization of Intangible Assets 1,355.95 727.10
Total 3,078.22 2,577.09
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Note 33- Other expenses

Particulars

For the year

For the year,

2023-24 2022-23

Rent 612.57 591.92
Rate, fee & taxes 118.56 95.86
Repairs & maintenance 423.16 32190
Office expenses 387.04 329.29
Power, fuel and electricity charges 123.83 113.29
Communication expenses/ Postage 173,90 180.29
Printing & stationery 7102 78.44
Insurance 212.60 21245
Membership & subscription 106.23 123.78
Travelling & conveyance 1,051.40 1,053.47
Advertisement, marketing & business promotion exp 183.72 1,425.81
Auditors’ Fees and Expenses - -

- As Audit Fees 27.82 27.56

- For Tax Audit 2.15 1.72
Legal & Professional Charges 1,697.63 2,465.25
Listing fee 5.18 4.07
Directors remuneration and sitting fees 254,26 797.26
Expense for financial guarantee obligation 939.49 114.20
Corporate soclal responsibility expense {Refer Note 33(a)} 106.20 £58.0C
Bank Charges 31179 36840
Facilitation fees 58.37 133.14
Server usage charges 562.67 42286
SMS usage charges 108.98 55,05
Loss cn sale of property plant & equipments - 26.37
Integration Charges - 10.08
Consultancy Charges - 227
Expecied credit loss for financial guarantee obligation 372,66 -
Loss on account ¢f had debts 3.15 14.50
Expected credit loss on trade receivable 8.31 777
Fees and subscription 128.79 138.16
Transaction loss 470.03 228.96
Provision for doubtful advances 4440 -
Provision for Contingencies 210.42 166.53
Credit verification charges 150.00 2027
Loss on foreclosure and write-off of loan 20.64 23.67
MCA Filing Fees 071 031
Custody Fees 1.07 0.07
Fabrication and Installation Exps 1.03 -
Web Site Expenses 17.56 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 37.03 147.83
Total 9,127.95 9,885.96
Exceptional Items
Loss on winding up of subsidiary company - 103.34

103.34
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Note 33(a)-Details of CSR Expenditure
Pursuant to the applicability of CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) pro

visions of the Companies Act, 2013 the details are as helow :

Particulars

For the year

For the year|

2023-24 2022-23
i | Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year - -
ii | Amount of expenditure incurred 106,20 5000
iiil Shortfall at the end of the year. - B
iv | Total of previous year shortfall - B
v | Reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable

vi | Nature of CSR activities

Development of drains & solar
power enabled street lighting,
RQural Development,
Livelihood, Health, Education
& Environment

The amount is spent in
Rural Development,
Livelihood, Health,
Education &
Environment

vii| Details of related party transactions

Enterprise over which conirol
is exercised by the subsidiary
of the Company

Enterprise over which
control is exercised by
the subsidiary of the
Company.

Note 34 - Income Tax
(A) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year

For the year

Particujars 2023-24 2022-23
Current Tax 1,104.46 752,67
Deferred Tax Expense / (Income) 22.81 {407.08)
Total 1,127.27 345.59

(B) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehengive income

For the year

For the year

Particular

A 2023-24 2022-23
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1.23) -
Total (1.23) -

{C) Reconciliation of effective tax

For the year

For the year

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Accounting profit/{loss) before income tax (2,508.78) (6,181.69)
Tax expense at Statutory Income Tax Rate @ 25.168% (Previous Year 25.168%) - 752.67
Adjustment of tax impact of the foliowing:
Expenses not deductible under the Income Tax Act - -
income not taxable under the Income tax Act - -
Effect of Unabsorbed Depreciation set off - -
Effect on Deferred Tax due to Fair Value Gain on Investments 2281 (407.08)
Others - -
Income Tax expense reported in Statement of Profit or Loss (2,485.97} (5,836.10)
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Note 35- Other Comprehensive income

. For the year For the year
articul:

Particulars 202324 2022-23
[tems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Eguity instrument measured at fair value through CCl {4.88) -
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Income tax relating to equity instrument measured at fair value through OC{ 1.23 -

{3.65) -

Note 36- Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit / (loss] and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS cornputations:

For the year

For the year

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(a) Net(loss) / profit for calculation of basic EPS (2,604.60}% (6,423.95)
Net [loss) / profit for calculation of diluted EPS (2,604.60) {6,423.95)
(b) Weighted average number of equily shares during the year - Basic 5,060,606 5,060,606
Effect of dilution:
Add : Weighted average number of convertible preference shares - -
Weighted average number of shares in calculating diluted EPS 5,060,606 5,060,606
Earning Per Share - Basic (Rs.) (51.47) {126.94)
Earning Per Share - Diluted (Rs.) (51.47) (126.94)
Face Value per share (Rs.} 10.00 10.00
Note 37-Transaction in foreign currency
. For the year For the year
Particalars 2023-24 2022-23
Earning in Foreign Currency
Export of foreign currencies - 866.05
Commission received - Forex 33.52 11.77
Commission received - Western union $9.00 2170
Advising fees - 4.50
Subscription charges 4.02 -

Forward Cover Qutstanding

The Group uses forward exchange contractto hedge against its foreign currency exposuares re

commitments,

The Group does not enter inte any derivatives instruments for trading or speculative purpose.

The forward exchange contracts ouistandings as at 31 March, 20724 are as under currency exchange USD/INR

a) Number of Sale Contracts: 2 {31s¢ March 2023 : NIL)
b} Apgregate Amount: Rs. 383.77 Lakhs {31st March 2023: NIL)

lated to underlying transaction and firm
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28 Dividend distribution to equity shareholders of the Subsidiary Company

The Board of Directors of CIFL at ils meeting held on 22nd May, 2024 have recommen

©.10 per share) amounting to Rs. 77.73 Lakhs (31st March 2023: Rs. 77,73 Lakhs) on ordinary equity shares,

39 In compliance with the Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statement’, the required information is below:

ded dividend of Rs 0.10 per equity share (31st March 2023: Rs.

Percentage (%) of ownership interest
Name Place of Business For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Subsidiaries
Capital India Finance Limited india 73.04% 73.04%
Credenc Web Technologies Private Limited India 77.11% 66.70%
Yellow Whale Technologies Private Limited india 78.00% 78.00%
Capital India Wealth Management Private Limited [ndia 100.00% 100.00%
CIFL Holdings Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
40 Disclosure Pursuant to ind AS 116 "Leases”
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Opening bkalance 2,867.43 3,594.93
Additions during the year 22537 275.08
Deletions during the year {659.86) [176.42)
Adiustnent on Account of Lease Madification - -
Finance cost accrued daring the year 174.49 288.61
Payment of lease lisbilities {1,037.15) {1,115.67
Closing balance 1,570.28 2,867.43
Maturity analysis of Lease Liabilities {Undiscounied basis}]
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Not later than 1 year 724.G5 1,086.56
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,071,50 2,196.97
Later than 5 years - -
Total 1,795.55 3,293.53
Amount recognised in statement of Profit & Loss account during the year
Particulars As atMarch 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Rent expense recognised for short term and low value leases 485,61 410,13
Depreciation on Roll assets 841.01 -
Interest expenses or: lease liabilities 174.49 19.94

Note:
1 The Group does not have variable lease payments (31st March, 2623 - Nil)

2 The Group has not subleased right of use asset during the year {31st March, 2023 - Nif)
3 The Group does not have any significant restrictions or covenants imposed by leases (31st March, 2023 - Nil}
4 The Group does not have any committed undiscounted leases that has not yet commienced as at 31st March, 2024 {31st March, 2023 - Nil)
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Note 41: Related Party Transaction
Details Of Related Parties

Name of Company/Enfity Description of relationship 1
Capital lzdla Home Leans Lid Step Down Subsidiary Company

Capital india Finance Limited Substdiary Company

Credene Web Technolopies Pvt Lid Subsidiary Company

Capial Indfa Wealth Managetment PyLLd. Wholly Owned Subsidiary

CIFL Holdings Pvt Ltd. Wholly Owned Subsidiary

Capial India Asset Management Put Lid Step Down Subsidiary Company

Napipay Fintech Pyt td Step Down Subsidiary Company

NYE Investech Pyt Lid {Formerly Kuants Wealth Pyt Ltd) Step Dewn Substdiary Company

YeHow Whale Technologies Pyt Lt Subsldtary Company

NYE Insurance Broking Pvt Ltd Step Down Subsidiary Company wel june 01, 2022

Atulya Foundation Enterprise over which contral is exercised by the subsidtary of the Company
Sitaram Miwas Pyt Ltd Enterprise Under which KMP has significant inlluence

YPrident Buildtech Pyt Lid Enterprise Under which XMP has significant influence

Key Management Personnel Description of retationship

Sumit Kumay Narvar Chairman & Managing Director

Keshav Porwal Non Executive Director

Deepak Vaswan Non LExecutive Director

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 315t March, 2024 and cutstanding balances thereof

Enterprise under which KMP fias significant Key Total
Parkicutars Trident Buildtech| Capital Indla Rapipay manageiment
Pvilid Home Loans Ltd j Fintech Pvt Lid personnel

Malances outstanding in the beginning of the Reporling Period - - - - -
Amount Payable 36,644.50 - - - 36,544.50
Amount Receivable - - - - .
Transaction during the year

Loan Recejved 1.520.00 - - - 1,520.00
Loan Given - - - - -
Rovalty Income - 3540 - 35.40
Dividend Income - - - -
Unjisted Loan Cenvertible into Equity Shares - - - - -
Investment in Eguily Shares - - - - -
Trandemark Transfer Income - - 092 - 0.92
Amount Received - 3240 092 - 33.32
Amaunt Paid - - - - -
Interest Paid on Debenture and Unsecured Loans 329 - - - 3.29
‘I'DS Receivable - 340 - - 3.00
{nterest on Debenture and Loan Given {Net of TDS) - - - - -
nterest on Loan Received (Net of TBS) 10698 - - - 106,98

| Balances gutstanding at the gnd of the Reporting Period

Amounl Payable 38,168.19 - - - 38,168.19
Amount Receivable - - - - -

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.
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Note 42: Related Party Transaction

Details Of Related Parties

Name of Company/Entity

Description of relationship

Capital India Home Loans Ltd
Capital India ¥inance Limited
Credenc Web Technologies Pyt Lid

Capital India Weaith Management Pvt

Ltd.

CIFL Heldings Pvt Ltd.

Capital India Asset Management Pvt
Lid

Rapipay Fintech Pvt Ltd

Kuants Wealth Pvt itd-

Yellow Whale Technologies Pyt Lid
NYH Insurance Broking Pvt Ltd
Atulya Foundation

Sitaram Niwas Pvt Ltd

Trident Buildtech Pvt Ltd

Step Down Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company

Whelly Owned Subsidiary
Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Step Down Subsidiary Company

Step Down Subsidiary Company

Step Down Subsidiary {w.e.f. April 18, 2022)

Subsidiary Cempany

Step Down Subsidiary Company w.e.f. June 01, 2022

Enterprise over which control is exercised by the subsidiary of the Company
Enterprise Under which KMP has significant influence

Enterprise Under which KMP has significant influence

Key Management Personnel

Description of relationship

Sumit Kumar Narvar
Keshay Porwal
Deepak Vaswan

Chairman & Managing Director
Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2023 and outstanding balances thereof

Enterprise under which KMP has significant Influence Key

Particulars

Trident Buildtech
Pyt Ltd

Capital India Home
Loans Itd

Rapipay Fintech Pvt
Ltd

nanagement
personnel

Total

Balances outstanding in the

beginning of the Reporting Period

Amount Payable

41,417.30

Amount Receivable

41,417.36

Transaction during the year
Loan Received

Loan Given

Royalty Income

Credit note against royalty income
Dividend Income

Investment in Shares
Investment in Compulsorily
Convertibie Debentures

Sale of investments

Amount Received

Amount Paid

Interest Paid on Debenture and
Ungecured Loans

Interest on Debenture and Loan Given

{Net of TDS)

Debenture Redeemed

Interest on Loan Received (Net of
TDS}

Balances outstanding at the end of

the Reporting Pericd

1,144.97
444

12.62

4,535.00
1235

41.89
5.50

1,406.53

811.88

41.89
5.50

1,406.53
36.39
1,144.97
4.44

12.62

4,535.00
12.35

Amount Payabie

36,544.50

36,544.50

Amount Receivable

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management,
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43 Disclosure pursuant ta ind AS 12 'income Taxes'

(i) Tax Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and f.oss

e For the year ended Far the year ended
Parteutars March 31, 2004 March 31, 2024
Current fax:

In vespect of current year 737279 T52.67

In respect of prior years 366,67 -
Deferred Tax;
Defarred tax relating to origination and reversal of lemporary differences 2281 {407.08)
Total Incorme Tax recognised in profit ar less

Currenl tax 1,104.46 752.67
_Defurred tax 22,81 {40708} |
| Total 1,127.27 345.59

(5] income Tax recognised in Other comprebhensive income

Particulars For the year endled For the yeas ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2624
Peferred tax related 1o items recognised in Other comprehensive inceme during the year:
Pemeasurement of defined employee benelits 13.78 (1444
Tatal Income Lax recopaised it Other, comprehensive income 13.78 (14,44

{iii) Reconcitiation of effective tax rate:
The reconciiiation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to incomie tax expense reported in profit or loss isas follows :

- For the year ended| For the yaar ended
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 20_;[
Prolit before Tax {2,508.78) [6,181.69)
Enacted income tax rate (9] 25.17% 25.17%
nccine tax expense calculated at applicable income Lax rate f63141) {1,555.81)
Tax effect af adjusiments ta reconciie expected income tax expense o reported income tax expense:
Expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes 465.18 1,188.37
TDeductions available undar income tax [418.93) {340.45)
Othey Termporary differences 918,60 265174
Income Tax expense recagnised in profit and loss 333.44 1,843.85
Deferved Tax recoanised in profit and loss 22.81 -207.08
Tax recognised in profit and loss 356.25 1,536.78
Actual effective income tax rate (95) {14.20%)] (24.86%]|
The Group has recognised Deferred Tax Assels arising from deductible Lemporary Jifforences to the extent there is an evidence of [uture taxable profit.
{i¥] Movement in temperary differences
Partleulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Credit / (Charge] in the Statement of Prefitand Loss during the year
Loans and Advances 148.58 72.56
Emplovee Benefits 3536 67.08
Depreciation 5090 14636
Advances to stalf - {0.15)
ROU and Lease Liabllity 32595 (33.34)
MAT Adjustment [11.06) -
Borrowings 23,69 (7883)
Ivestments 218 {2.1m
On Falr value of DA pool {245.26) {85.33)
Carry forward losses (297.86) 297.84
Lease Modification - (851)
Totai (a} 4248 375.49
Credit / (Charge]} in the other comprehensive income during the year
Provisions - employee benefits expenses (b) 1378 {14.22)]
Total [23+Hb) 56,26 361.18
44 Impairment of Geodwill
The Group tests goodiwili for impairment annizally on March 31, During the year ended Marel 31, 2024, the Lesting did not result in any impairment in the carrying amount of goodwill
45 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Group ot acknowledged as debt
Contingent liability against the Expected credit loss pertaining Lo subsidiary company 5,082.26 596975
- Dthers - guarantee o hiehall of step down: subsidiary i.e. CiHL by subsidiary Capital India Finanace Limited 26,373.58 2248457
Total {a) 33,455.84 20,454.32
Commitments
Fsthnated amount of contractsfnet ol advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 363 391
Undrawn committed sanctlons to borrewers 2,285.24 2,789.52
Total (b} 2,280.87 2,793.43
Total {c=a+b} 35,744.71 31,2475
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Note 46{a)- Financla) Instruments:
Set nut below Isa comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Nnapcial instruments of the fompany;

S
As at 315t March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Cost/Amortised Cost:
FYTPL FVTOC Cost/Amortised FVTPI, FVTOCI
Cost

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivatents 2377111 - . - 24,205.95 . -

Rank halance other than cash pnd cash equivalents 10.262.04 - - 7.937.96 - -
| Receivable 2,066.94 1819.79

{oans 123,937.70 - - 123,621.13 - -

Investiments 183234 - - 527491 - -

Other Financial assets 4,318.52 - - 2,454.83 - -

Total 166,188.65 - - 165,314,56 - -

Finangial Llabilities

Pavable 1,610.55 1.527.97

Debt Securities - 8,053.58

Borrewing {olher than deit securities) 93,752.897 - - 85,752.15 - -

Subgrdinated liahliities - 34.872.61 - 35511.00 -
_Diher financial liabilities 20,322.66 - 17,9}15.88 - -
[_Tula% : 115,686,18 3487261 - 149,797.58 - -

Fair Valuatien Technlques:
The Company maintains policies and procedures te value Financial Assets & Financial Lisbilities using the best and most rolevant data avallaile. The Fair Values of the Financlal Assets and Liahtlities are
Included at the amount that would be received ta sell an assetor paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measirenent dale.

The Group has disclosed financlal instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other current financial lability at carrying value because their cafpying amounts are a
reasonable approximation of the fair values due to thetr short term nature,

Falr-value of Investment in Quoted Equity Shares is based on quoted nsatket price at the reparting dale and for unquoted, it is determined as per IND A5 113,

Note 46[b}- Falr Value hietarchy

Al financlai assets and liabilitfes for which fair value is measured in the standalone financial statements are categorised within the Fair value hierarchy, described as follaws: -

Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets.

1.evel 2 - inputs other thaw nuoted prices included within Level & that

Levei 3 - Inputsthat are not based on observable markel data,

The fallowing table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities, wiich have Jeen measured subsequent to initizl recognition at faiy value as at 31st March 2624
and 3 1st March 2023:

Assets / Liabllities measred at faiv value Faizr valie measurement at end of the reporting year Using
Levell LeveiZ Level 3 Total
As at 3istMareh 2024
Assets at fair value
Investments - - 1,832.34 1,832.34
Lizbilltles at falr valuc
Subordinale Liabilities - - 3487261 3487261
Asat 31st March 2023
Assels at fadr value
investments - - 527491 §274.91
Llabilities at fair value
Subordinate Liabilities - - 46,511.90 3691100

Buring the Year ended 3 Lst March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023, thare was o transfers bstween Level L, Level 2 and Level 3

A one percent point chavge in the unobservable inputs used in fair valuation of Jevel 3 assets and labilittes does not have a significant impact in its value.

The fair values uf the quoted equity nstruments were determined on the basis of the closing price on the last day of the financial year. In respect of unlisted equity instrumants measured at FYTOCH, fair
value is determined based on the estimation of valuation by the management. The fair value of unguoted investments in preference shares are estimated by discounting luture cash flows using rales
currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and rematning maturities.The estimation is based on level 3 inputs lke net assets valug ele.

Impact in statement of prefit and loss:

Farticulars Year Ended Year Ended|
31.02.2024 31.03.2623
Dpening balance of investments valued usiig leyel 3 inputy 527491 527491
Adgd/(less}: Purchase of Investinent 1,684.72 .
Add/{less): Sale of Investment - -

Add f{less); Redemption of lnyestment, - -
Add/fless): Fair value changes for the vear recognised In OCI {10,05)

Add/{lgss): Adjustment on account of consolidation {5,117.23} -
Clostng balanre of inyestments valued ysing fevel 3 Inputs, 1,832.34 527491
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Note 47: Financial risk management objectives and policies
‘The Holding Company's activities are exposed to market risk (interest risk} and liquidity risk from its eperations.

Marlket Risk

Market risk is the risk of foss of luture earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may results from change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of
a financial instrument may change as result of change in the interest rates and other market changes may affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk
is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instraments, security deposit, payahles and loahs and borrowings, Market prices comprise of interest rate
risk.

Currency Risk

The Holding Company does not have any transaction in foreign currency and hence is hot exposed to currency risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Holding Company Is not exposed to the risk of changes in market interest rates as the company's borrowings comprise of loans with fixed rate of interest.

Eqguity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decrsases as the result of chahges in the level of equity indices and individual stocks. The Holding
Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and tolal equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio
are submitted to the Holding Company’s senior management on a regular basis, The Holding Company’s Board of Divectors reviews and approves ali equity
investment decisions,

Liquidiky Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Holding Company will encounter difficuliy in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. ‘The Holding Company’s approach is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due. The Helding Company relies excess operating cash flows Lo meet its needs for funds, The Holding Company monitors roiling forecasts of its
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs.

The table below provides details regarding the vemaining contractual maturities of financial Habilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted
payments pertaining to holding company.

Particulars Carrying Amounts Less than 1-3 Years More than 3 Years
1 Year

As at 31stMarch 2024

Borrowings 37,742.06 2,335.95 - 35,406.11

Other Financial Liabilities 418.86 418.86 - -

As at 31st March 2023

Borrowings 37,860.45 1,315.95 - 36,544.50

Other Financial Liabilities 164,62 164.62 - -

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Holding Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Helding Company's trade, cash and cash equivalents and investments, The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the
financia! instruments covered below is restricted to their respective carrying amount

Trade Receivables

The Holding Company does not have an expasure to credit risk from customers since the Company does not have any trade receivables.

Cash & Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 23,771,11 lakhs as at 31st March 2024 (Rs. 24205.95 lakhs as at 3ist March 2023) and bank deposlts
{including other bank balances} of Rs. 10,262.04 lakhs as at 31st March 2024 (Rs. 7,937.96 lakhs as at 31st March 2023). These are held with credit worthy
hanks and financial institutions and the credic worthiness of such banls and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basls and is
considered to be good.

Other Financial Assets

Credit risk from other financial instruments has not increased significantly since initial recognition, accordingly the expected probability of defaultis low,
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Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Amount in Rupees Lakh unless otherwise stated

Exposure to the Credit Risks

The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment recognised represents the maximum credit expos

31.03.2024 and as at 31.03.2023 is as follows:

Particulars Asat31,03.2024 As at 31.(]3.2(’.)234j
Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,771.11 24,205.95
Ban' balance other than cash and cash equivalents 10,262.04 7,937.96
Receivable 2,06694 1,819.79
Investments 123,937.70 123,621,13
Loans 1,832.34 527491
Other Financial Assets 4,318.52 2454.83
Taotal 166,188.65 165,314,5¢

Note 48- Capital Management

The Group operates as an Investment Company and consequently is registe

ure. The maximum credit exposure as at

red as a Non-Banking Financiai Company - Core Investment Company -Non deposit

taking- systemically important (NBFC-CIC-NDS1) with Reserve Bank of India (RBI).The Company’s pelicy is to maintain an adequate capital base so as to market
confidence and to sustain futare development. Capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders. The primary objective
of the Company's capital management is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize the shareholder’s value, In order to strengthen the capital base, the
company may use appropriate means to enhance or reduce capital, as the case may be.

The Group is not subject to any external imposed capital requirement. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital pius net debt. Net Debtis calculated as borrowings lass cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Sub-ordinated liabilities 34,872.61 36,511.00

Borrowings 93,752.97 85,789.15

Less: Cash & Cash equivajent (23,771.11) (24,205.95)
Net Debt 104, 85447 98,094.2.0
Equity Share Capital 506,06 506,06
Other Equity 19,329.18 19,319,53
Total Capital 19,835.24 19,825.59

Capital and Net Debt 124,689.70 117,919.79
Gearing Ratio 84,09% 93.19%
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Note 45; Maturity analysis of assets and liabilitics

Particulars

ASSETS

1. Fipanglal Assels

{c) Receivables

(d] Loans
fe} lnvestments

{a) Inventories

{h] Goodwill

LIABILITIES

{a) Pavable

As at 31st March 2824 As al 31st March 2023
Within 1Z months| After 12 months Tatal “:‘l‘l:'ll]t‘h?' After 12 manths Talal
{a] Cash and Gash Equivalents 23771.11 2377111 24,20595 2420595
9} Bank balance other than {a) above 6563.18 3,698.87 10,262.04 5,697.02 2,240.94 7.537.96
11} Trade Recelvables 2,051.42 - 2,051.42 1,78549 - 1,768549
[i{) Other Receivables 15.52 - 1552 3438 - 34.30
2782338 85,114.32 123,937.70 31,329.17 92,291.96 12362113
- 1,632.34 1,832.34 442713 847.78 527491
{0y Other Financial assets 1,809.51 2,509.01 431852 1,00827 1,356,56 245482
2. MonFinangial Asscts -
109.00 - 109.68 §2.18 - 82.18
(b} Current Tax Assets (nel) 607.05 1635 623.40 62886 61631 1,245,317
(e Delerved tax Assets [net} 7743 1,029.99 118742 13337 105115 1,18452
{d} Property, Flant and Bauipment a8.35 1,855.86 1,954.25 15343 2,194.38 2,35181
(e} Capitat work in propress - 30,17 30.17 - 15.00 15.00
£} Intangible assels under development 0.00 1,001.18 1,001.18 - 3,513.39 3,513.39
1 Other Intangible Assets 12.29 4393.75 4,406.04 7.67 155845 1,566,512
- 1,807.5%9 1,807.59 . 1,807.59 1,80759
[i} Right of use assets - 1,332,00 1,332,00 0.00 2,551.98 255198
Other non-financial assets 182472 1,096.75 292147 130418 84658 2,150,776
1. FinanciaiLiabllities
1,610.55 - 161055 152797 - 152797
{b} Debt Securities - - - 8,053.58 - B,053.58
{¢) Borrowting {other than debt securities) 4,781.53 #6,97144 93,752.97 3326158 52,521.17 85,789.15
{d} Lease Liabilities £05.03 965,25 1,570.28 88644 1,560.99 2,867.43
{d] Subordinated liabilities . 34,872.61 34,872.61 - 36,511.00 3653100
[e} Other financlal liabilities 20,322.66 20,322,686 17,751.26 164.62 1751588
2. Non Financlal Jiabilities
{#) Provisions 1,283.9% 504.95 1,768.93 1,045.61 50134 1,546,95
) Other non-financial labilitles 145251 - 1,452.5% 1,160.62 - 1,160.62
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Note 50- Other Notes

i. Based on the information available with the Company, there are dues as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 payable to enterprises covered under "Micre, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20067, Interest is paid/payable by the Company ia terms of Sectien 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006,

ii. The physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipments & Intangible Asscis were carried out at reasonable intervals and no matetial discrepancies were found on
such verification. No personal expenses of emplayees or directors have been charged to revenue accouit, except those payable under contractual obligations or in
accordance with generatly accepted business.

iii. As per the internal assessment of fhe company, there is no non financial asset reguiring allowance for impairment in compliance of IND AS 36 on “tmpatrment of
Asscts” other than already provided / disclosed.

iv. Provision for Current Income Tax has been made since there being no taxable income. Deffered Tax is recognised in respect of timing difference relating te bool and
tax depreciation in accordance with IND AS, on "Accounting for Taxes on income'

v. Figures for the previous year have been reclassified/ recasted/ regrouped, wherever considered necessary

vi For working out the figures of goodwill on consolidation, the balance sheet of subsidiaries for the year ended 31-03-2022 have been considered as this is the first
consolidated balance sheet of the group.

vii Regarding one associate company Rapipay Fintech Pyl Ltd. which is a step dewn subsidiary of the company, no consolidation has been done on the grounds that the
subsidiary company has atready consolidated the figures.

As per our report of even date
For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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